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VISION
To be India’s largest supplier of Steel Value based Infrastructure solutions.

MISSION
Build up a comprehensive capability for providing end to end steel based solutions covering complete value chain of 
activities ranging from design, engineering, fabrication, installation at site and project management for the diverse 

infrastructural projects

To become “Vendor of choice” for the customers by offering them the “Best Value” for the investment and strive for 
enduring client relationships

To position the Company as a champion of steel usage in all construction solutions and contribute to skill 
development in the neighboring society

To be a compliant and law abiding citizen.

CORPORATE POLICY
INTEGRATED MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

SISCOL will achieve and sustain excellence across its value chain to offer end-to-end steel solutions in diverse 
infrastructural projects that not only meet, but exceed customer expectations. These solutions, encompassing design, 

engineering, asset-light manufacturing, site erection-installation and project management services will incorporate 
automation, innovative high productivity and cost effective methods to deliver superior value to our customers by 

becoming their ‘vendor of choice’. 
 

This integrated policy covering quality, environmental, health & safety, information security will be compatible with the 
context and strategic direction of SISCOL and will be achieved by:

• Continual enhancement of people, products and services through process standardization, system development & 
implementation, automation, innovation, best-in-class bench-marking and performance measuring mechanism to 

achieve organizational excellence

• Adopting ‘4S: Systems, Spirit, Simplicity & Speed’ philosophy to deliver high quality product and service to 
customers in time

• Proactively seek, appraise and implement feedback from customers and other stakeholders with regard to the 
processes we adhere to; while we continually improve the management systems

• Design-engineer products and solutions with demonstrable superiority in reducing consumption of natural 
resources, operating with minimum inventory, minimizing waste-scrap generation and prevention of pollution to 

achieve sustainable growth

• Adopting latest cutting-edge technologies and techniques that translate in quality products & services, accident-
free operations, minimize impact on environmental & occupational health and secure IT operations

• Identifying business, health, safety, information security risks & environmental impacts and ensure they are treated 
through appropriate measures to a level ‘As Low As Reasonably Practicable’

• Comply with all applicable legal, statutory, regulatory and other requirements related to our business

• Leveraging information technology and digitalization for enhancing efficiency and effectiveness of every aspect of 
our business processes, while prudently ensuring confidentiality, integrity and availability of information

• As a socially responsible company, be sensitive to our employees’ needs as well as the community we operate in, 
by providing performance ambience of challenge and empowerment of our employees and partners.

VISION & MISSION

CORE VALUES
Integrity and fairness in all matters

Respect and mutual trust

Fostering culture of creativity, innovation and teamwork

Ownership of responsibility

Compliance with law and good governance practices.
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Dear Shareholders,

FY21 was an year of unprecedented challenges with 
the entire nation under lockdown in Q1 due to Covid 
pandemic, which, besides causing wide scale loss of 
human life and suffering completely disrupted the 
economic activity. During Q2,  lockdown was lifted 
from some parts of the country. However, daunting 
challenges were faced in the movement of raw 
material & finished goods and labour availability as 
widespread panic among workers had led to their 
large scale migration to their native villages and 
towns. Situation improved substantially during Q3 
and Q4 of FY21, although second wave hit severely 
starting from March 21.

The indomitable SISCOL Team demonstrated 
extraordinary courage and collective ownership by 
speedily setting up all Covid related safety measures  
and strict compliance of the same. And we became 
the first Industrial Company  in the Durg district 
which was allowed to reopen all the four industrial 
units and progressively reach 100% capacity by 
early September. Safety of our employees remained 
our top most priority and were given unconditional 
support to combat & overcome the Covid challenge.

Our Company notwithstanding the constant threat 
worked tirelessly to deliver an output which 
surpassed the previous output by 8%. We are 
indeed very proud of our employees’ unmatched 
commitment to their Company’s survival and 
success even in the face of worst adversity caused 
by the external environment.

Employees always come first…
Besides closely monitoring  the well being of its 
employees,and providing them unconditional 
support, the Company launched  three Employee 
welfare schemes during FY21 including Personal 
Accident Insurance, Group Mediclaim Policy and 
Employees Welfare Fund. The Company has also 
implemented loan services for its employees from 
HDFC Bank at special concessional rates through a 
very simple process. SISCOL continued with ESOP 
scheme for their deserving employees and by the 
end of FY21, 90 Employees have been granted 
2,55,000 options.

Company Performance
I am pleased to inform that inspite of all challenges 
and external roadblocks, the Company delivered 
8% higher  tonnage  and its EBITDA, PBT and ROCE 
touched all time high. SISCOL is proud to announce 
that all their contract deliveries were made in or 
before time. All key  financial parameters including 
DSCR, Debt-Equity and  Interest coverage ratio 
recorded impressive improvements. The Company’s 
Working Capital continued to be  managed very 
efficiently and as a gesture of this  recognition, the 
HDFC bank continued their unconditional support 
by enhancing the credit limits.

Performance of New Business Units (BUs)
Two new Business Units, one each for the Design 
& Engineering and  Installation Services were set 
up during the last quarter of FY20. Both these BUs 
have grown during FY21. The BU installation by 
the end of FY21 had secured nine contracts with 
an aggregate value close to Rs. 100 Crs. More 
resources are being added in the Installation team 
and its footprint is being expanded to reach out to 
more  customers. The vast experience and proven  
competence of Design & Engineering team has also 
been recognized by external customers and several 
new  contracts have been awarded to them.

Chairman and Managing Director’s message
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Formidable Challenges of FY21
Apart from disruption caused by pandemic,  
unprecedented rise in prices of steel did impact 
the margins as  well as timely availability of the raw 
material. Rise in prices of transportation fuel caused 
an increase of about 15% in the logistics cost. The 
prices of gases and consumables including the 
gases, welding electrodes and paints also rose by 
10% due to increase in the prices of raw materials 
and logistics cost. SISCOL notwithstanding these  
sudden hikes in the prices of input costs not only 
achieved their targets of EBITDA and PBT but 
exceeded them.

Market demand and trends……
The growth  of infrastructure and industrial projects 
slowed down considerably during the first two 
quarters of FY21 with the result that the number of 
new  projects were limited and price levels declined. 
This resulted in overall Order Intake to fall short of 
the  budgeted target of Rs. 40,000 Cr. However, at 
the start of new year FY22, the Company had good  
stock of executable orders and a robust enquiry 
bank. The overall outlook of business for FY22 
appears quite positive.

New market and product segments
The Company continued to expand its presence into 
the new geographical markets and introduced new 
product lines. SISCOL  secured major contracts for 
the supply of Launch Girders – a new product line 
with high business potential  for the High Speed link 
project between Mumbai and Pune. The Company , 
with a view to develop this product line,  dedicated 
a new production line for it in one of its production 
Units.  SISCOL also took orders for another new 
product line of Bow String Bridges whose business 
volume has also been growing rapidly and steadily. 

Complete solutions to clients
Several customers during the recent past have 
shown inclination for placing orders for the 
completion solution from the Steel Structure 
Companies which meant that apart from the Design 
& Engineering and installation services, clients 
wanted the full  package of hardware required for 
the completion of their projects. SISCOL secured 
several such projects from leading companies like 
L&T, DLF and Toyo Engineering during FY21 with a 
cumulative value in excess of  Rs. 100 Cr.

Modernisation of Production Units
The effort to modernize the existing units which 
was started in FY20 gathered momentum during 

FY21. Several new automated facilities were added 
to achieve higher productivity and production 
volumes, consistent quality and reduce excessive 
dependence on manual methods. Production 
processes were standardized and units were given 
specific client industry focus. Specific projects were 
undertaken to reduce the manufacturing  cycle time 
and thus enable higher production volumes as also 
reduce the delivery time.

Digitally driven SISCOL  
The Company fully recognises the critical and 
urgent need for complete transformation of its 
internal processes and external interfaces to be 
fully digitized to achieve seamless integration of 
all its working systems. A SAP based integrated 
system covering material management, production, 
logistics, finance, accounting, HR and commercial 
activities is fully implemented on cloud based 
platform. In addition an elaborate bar coding 
system  is fully functional for both raw material and 
finished goods. The Company has also switched 
over to digital banking for all payments including 
the Letters of Credit and Bank Guarantees.

Strategy for FY22
FY 21 has been a year of many learnings for managing 
unforeseen risks. The Company henceforth will 
take new contracts with adequate  protection built 
against any hike in the material prices. Fixed value 
contracts will be avoided. Adequate protection 
will also be provided against rise in prices of 
consumables. Most of the deliveries to clients will 
be done ex-works to avoid uncertainty in the cost 
of logistics. The Company is targeting to achieve at 
least 20% growth of its turnover both in physical 
and value terms during FY22.

SISCOL by maintaining the continuity of its business 
even in the face of extreme challenges during FY 21 
has proved itself to be a company with tremendous 
resilience and as a dependable partner for all 
its esteemed customers. I would like to thank all 
our customers, employees and vendors  for their 
unstinted support and faith in us. I would also like 
to wish all our business associates good health and 
safe future ! 

Ravi Uppal
Chairman & Managing Director
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Mr. Zarksis J Parabia
Director

Mr. Ravi Uppal
Chairman & 

Managing Director

Mr. K. Rajagopal
Director Finance

Mr. Niladri Sarkar 
Director Marketing & 

Business Development

Mr. Siddharth Shah
Director

Mr. Ranjan Sharma
Director

Mr. Arun Choudhari
Director

Board of Directors
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CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR:
MR. RAVI UPPAL
Mr. Ravi Uppal serves as the Chairman & Managing 
Director of Steel Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (SISCOL) 
and is responsible for business excellence, both in 
the domestic and global markets. With wide-ranging 
business experience, spanning over 39 years in 
engineering and infrastructure segments in India and 
abroad, Mr. Uppal is known for his entrepreneurial 
experience. Before joining SISCOL, he served as the 
Managing Director & Group CEO of Jindal Steel & 
Power Limited. Prior to that, he was Chief Executive 
Director (Power) and Whole-Time Director of L&T. 
Earlier he held various positions in ABB Group 
including President of Global Market, Member of 
Group Executive Committee, President of ABB in 
Asia Pacific Region & Chairman & Managing Director 
of ABB India. He has also to his credit of being the 
Founding Managing Director of Volvo in India.

DIRECTOR (FINANCE): MR. K. RAJAGOPAL
Mr. K. Rajagopal is serving as Director (Finance) of 
Steel Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (SISCOL). Prior to this, 
he served as the Group Chief Financial Officer of 
Jindal Steel & Power Limited. Mr. Rajagopal served 
as a Chief Financial Officer of Asea Brown Boveri Ltd. 
since September 2001. He also held positions of 
CFO of ABB Switzerland and Group Chief Accountant 
of ABB Group Switzerland. He is a strategist, a policy 
maker and has strived to continuously improve the 
profitability through strategic and highly efficient 
business portfolio evaluation. He holds B.Com and 
is an Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.

DIRECTOR (MARKETING & BUSINESS 
DEVELOPMENT): MR. NILADRI SARKAR
Mr. Niladri Sarkar serves as the Director of Steel 
Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (SISCOL). Mr. Sarkar served 
as the Chief Executive Officer of Construction 
Solutions Unit of Jindal Steel and Power Limited. 
Prior to that, he served as CEO of Fedders Lloyd, 
Director and Chief Operating Officer of Geodesic 
Techniques and Senior Vice President (Customer 
Services) at Interarch Building Products. He has 35 
years experience in India and Abroad having worked 
with Companies like Tractebel Gas Engineering 
and ICI India Limited. He holds B. Tech. in Civil and 
Structural Engineering from IIT Delhi.

DIRECTOR: MR. RANJAN SHARMA
Mr. Ranjan Sharma has varied experience in the 
Indian corporate sector, spanning over 35 years. 
A Cost Accountant, Company Secretary and Law 
graduate by qualification, he was the CFO of Molins 
of India Ltd. which was a subsidiary of the British 
Group BAT/Molins, headquartered in London. His 
last assignment was as the Finance Director with 
the Oswal Group, where his major accomplishments 
included the implementation of mega-sized chemical 
and fertilizer projects.

He has the distinction of having participated in 
conceiving, financing and implementing state-of-
the-art, high technology plants of international 
scale with investments exceeding USD 1 billion. 
His accomplishments also include conceiving and 
implementing a unique venture in the field of rural 
telephony which has been much acclaimed all 
over the country and abroad for providing value 
added services to Indian farmers in rural hinterland 
through mobile phones.

DIRECTOR: MR. ARUN CHOUDHARI
Mr. Arun Choudhari serves as the Director of 
Steel Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (SISCOL). Mr. Arun is 
qualified as MBA from Clark University, USA. His area 
of expertise is in Finance, IT, Operations. He has 
around experience of 26 years in the industry.

DIRECTOR: ZARKSIS J PARABIA
Mr. Zarksis J Parabia serves as the Director of Steel 
Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (SISCOL). Mr. Parabia is 
qualified as D.M.E. His area of expertise is Specialized 
in transportation of super heavy over Dimensioned 
equipments, Material Management and erection of 
power transformers with pan India presence. He has 
around experience of 23 years in the Industry.

DIRECTOR: MR. SIDDHARTH SHAH
Mr. Siddharth Shah serves as the Director of 
Steel Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. (SISCOL). Mr. Shah 
is qualified as BE (EC) & MBA Finance. His area of 
expertise is as Investment Management. He has 
Past /current experience of 13 years of experience 
across Investment profiles at MK Ventures, Reliance 
Capital, ICRA & Kotak Securities etc.

Brief Profile of the 
Directors



8    Annual Report 2020–2021

SISCOL, as an organization, places purpose at the heart of its business. 
The company believe that any institution with purpose grows and 
people with purpose thrive. The organisation believes in openness in 
relationship with its employees and the conduct of the business. The 
company believe that transparency enhances accountability.

The company recognises its people as its biggest strength and 
empower them to unleash creativity by vesting decision-making 
power at the most appropriate levels and as close to the scene of 
action as feasible. SISCOL firmly believe that empowerment combined 
with accountability provides an impetus for superior performance and 
improves effectiveness.

SISCOL with a manpower strength of over 1,100 people have made a 
conscious effort to build an “inclusive” organization with employees 
drawn from different geographical parts of the country and also giving 
opportunity to all age and gender group. 71% of our employee strength 
is less than 40 years in age. The company’s HR policies have helped 
it create a capable and future ready organisation. Given the industry 
competitive business landscape and company’s aggressive growth 
plans, the Human Resources team continuously works on its talent 
engagement and development initiatives. The companies policies and 
initiatives remain employee centric to ensure that they remain fully 
engaged in their job.

Human Resource

EMPLOYEE DEMOGRAPHICS
71% of the employees are less than 40 years of age

Bifurcation by Age Location Bifurcation

A healthy mix of employees representing different regions

Strict measures taken by 
the company to adhere to 
Covid-19 safety protocol
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Corporate Office 

Design Office 

Manufacturing Units 

Marketing Offices 

Installation Centre

Chennai

Bangaluru

Mumbai

Bhilai

New Delhi

*Map not to scale. External or internal boundaries 
are for representational purpose only.

INDIA

SISCOL presence  
in India
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ISO 9001:2015 ISO 14001:2015 ISO 45001:2018

ISO 27001:2013

All units of SISCOL are covered under the scope of 
Integrated Management Systems (IMS)

Integrated Management  
Systems Certification (ISO)

ISO 50001:2011
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1. Concept & Architectural Drawings 2. Basic and Detailed Drawings

4. Fabrication of Structures and finishing3. Fabrication Drawings

5. Logistics & Delivery to Doorstep 6. Erection and Project Management

Complete Customer 
Solution
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Capacity 
Expansion

Modernization of Production Units

Unit No. 2

Unit No. 3
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Unit No. 3

Unit No. 4
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State-of-the-art 
machines at work

CNC Strip-cutting Machine, Unit No. 2

Slitting & Punching Press Machine, Unit No. 1
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Automatic Fabrication 
with CNC Machines

CNC Plasma Cutting Machine, Unit No. 2

Multi-axis Drilling Machine, Unit No. 3

Automated Shot-blasting Machine, Unit No. 1

High Speed CNC Drilling Machine, Unit No. 2
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High Speed CNC Drilling Machine, Unit No. 4

Beam straightening Machine, Unit No. 2



Annual Report 2020–2021   17

1.  Siscol has adopted a technology driven platform to carry out projects 
awarded to them

2.  The project management activities are carried out on SAP platform

3.  Design activities are carried out using latest software programs available 
worldwide

4.  Fabrication is carried out using CNC based machines based on outputs 
received from detailed engineering drawing with minimum manual input

5.  Portal based access  has been implemented for  investors, employees, 
vendors and customers  separately to provide transparency in relevant 
information relating to them

6.  Logistics traces location of finished goods trailers using GPS based trackers

SISCOL: a technology 
driven venture

• Remote monitoring of jobs by Customer / Leadership team on-demand

• Online Quality/EHS/IT inspection and audits

• Instant support: Remote maintenance assistance / troubleshooting

• On-the-job training to workers to enhance their competency levels

• Reduce travel time and cost due to remote reach-out

Remote inspection 
using Smart Glasses
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Engineering 
Services

SISCOL Engineering Services is a 
subsidiary of Steel Infra Solutions (SISCOL) 
Pvt Ltd., It is an Engineering Consultancy 
located in Bangalore that provides 
comprehensive technical and end-to-end 
range of design services, from conceptual 
design, connection design to erection 
engineering for various types of structures 
by highly qualified and experienced Design 
Engineers & Detailers using state-of-the-
art design and detailing software. We also 
have design service expertise required 
for complex, innovative structures and 
geometrical shapes which are built using a 
wide variety of sections.

Our Structural Steel Design Integrated 
Project Delivery approach to projects, 
provides our Clients and Architects with alternative constructability design opportunities and the integration of 
the Design, Detailing, Fabrication and Erection during the Conceptual, Schematic, and Design Development phases 
of a project. We approach projects holistically and connect the elements with a high degree of collaboration and 
creativity.

We place utmost value on our clients and offers them error free and lower cost designs with tight turnaround 
times by leveraging the resource base and cost structure.

Our team is equipped with software such as STAADPRO, ETABS, RAM for Structural Design and connection, custom-
made spread sheets for Connections, TEKLA and CAD

SISCOL Engineering Services offers following services:

• Structural Engineering Design Services

• Structural Steel Detailing Services

• Construction Engineering Services

Design & Engineering Team in Bengaluru
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• A team of 40 highly experienced professionals with rich experience in 

erection management of steel based building for different applications 

including Airports, Bridges, High rise buildings and Industrial structures.

Erection
Services

WDFCC bridge under erection

Delhi International Airport

Bengaluru International Airport
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Prestigious 
Projects 
Executed

DLF Downtown Building, Gurugram

KNR girder of 14 spans bridge  
on Malaprabha river, Karnataka
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Dwarka Convention Center

DIAL, Delhi International Airport
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• SISCOL provides logistic services for safe delivery of finished goods at site

• Our plant has facility of internal weighment of vehicles with a capacity of 60 MT

• All the vehicles are loaded by a team of highly experienced professional loaders

Logistic
Services
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Statutory 
Reports



24    Annual Report 2020–2021

Board’s Report

To,

The Members/Shareholders,
STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 04th (Forth) Annual Report on the business and operations of the 
Company together with audited financial statements of your Company for the year ended March 31, 2021.
Your Company has made a significant progress in its mission of building up a comprehensive capability for providing end 
to end steel-based solutions covering complete value chain of activities ranging from design, engineering, fabrication, 
installation at site and project management for the diverse infrastructural projects.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS 

Summary of Performance
    (All amounts in INR lakhs)

Particulars
FY 2020-21 

Amount
FY 2019-20

Amount

Total Income 19811.22 20876.74

Total Expenses 18558.26 20133.93

Profit/Loss before tax 1252.96 742.81

Income Tax - Current Year 254 65.45

Minimum Alternate Tax Credit - -

Income Tax - Earlier year 59.48 27.75

Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) 129.81 131.88

Profit for the year 809.67 517.73

Earnings per share (equity shares, par value INR 10 each) 2.64 1.70

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS in Q4 
• Q4 Revenue At Rs. 66 Cr. Is Highest Ever in Any Quarter 

• 3785 Mt Of Structures Delivered In March – Highest Delivery In Any Month 

• More Than 1500 Mt Of Bridge Structure Delivered During March

• Delivered First 450 Mt Launch Girder To Lnt For The Mumbai Coastal Road Project 

• SISCOL Secured Rs. 60 Cr. Contract For Turnkey Execution Of 6 Warehouses In JNPT

• Breakthrough Orders From Thyssen Krupp And Technimont For Hydrocarbon Sectors

• First Orders For Five Launch Girders For Mumbai - Ahmedabad High Speed Rail Corridor

• 5 New Customers Added During Q-4, Thus Taking Customer Tally To 40.

PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS in FY 20-21
• FY 20-21 Was a 10.5 Month Financial Year As Company Was Shutdown Due To Nationwide Lockdown During April/

May 2020.

• Lockdowns Continued During June To Sept in Various Parts Of The Country Causing Serious Problems With Availability 
of Manpower, Materials And Logistics
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• No Order Were Received During Q-1, Fy 20 Leading to Shortage Of Executable Orders In Q-2 & Q-3 Of FY 21

• All Projects Executed in Time.

BU: Installation Work Secured For 4 Projects :-

• LEH Airport (2500 Mt); Bangalore Airport (800 Mt); IIT Bhilai (750 Mt);

• DP World (2200 Mt)

• Delhi Airport (DIAL) -  16,500 Already Under Execution 

• Unabated Rise In Price Of Steel & Consumables And Shortage Of Steel Had Adverse Impact On Profitability

• Dial Project – Site Work Seriously Affected – Delayed by One Year  

MARKET/BUSINESS TRENDS
• Q3 & Q4 Of FY 21 Witnessed Buoyancy In Demand For Structural Steel 

• Unprecedented Rise In Prices Of Steel  - 75% From July 20 To April 21 Has Been A Major Damper For The Steel 
Demand

• Steel Producers Are Preferring Export Due To Higher Price Realisation Leading To  

 - Shortage Of Steel In Domestic Market
 - Longer Delivery Period From 3-4 Week To 7-8 Week 

• Higher Steel Prices Have Resulted In Higher Prices Of Welding Electrodes, Fastners And Consumable 

• Acute Shortage Of Oxygen And Prices Have Gone Up By 30%

• Paint Prices Gone Up By 15 %.

• Slow Down Of Infra Projects Due To Shortage Of Labour Who Have Abandoned The Project Site 

• Due To Suspension Of Work At Site, Customers Reluctant To Lift Material From Siscol Factory 

• Due To Rising Prices Of Steel, Customers Putting Pressure On Fabricators For Price Reduction

• Working Capital Bloated Due To Increased Price Of Steel & Consumables

• Finally – Production & Despatches Remain Uncertain During Q1 Due to Serious Disruption Caused By Pandamic.

COVID IMPACT & COLLATERAL DAMAGE ON SISCOL
• Key Inputs Like Oxygen, Welding Electrods And Paints Not Available

• Customers Not Available for Inspection Of Raw Material And Finished Goods 

• Huge Payments Overdue

• Raw Material Inventory Build Up 

• New Order Inflow Has Stopped 

• Limited Availability of Trucks

NEW INITIATIVES AT SISCOL 

A) NEW BUSINESS FOCUS 

• Turnkey Contracts For Steel Buildings Which Inter-alia Include Siscol Fabricated And Bought Out Items ; Complete 
Design And Engineering and Installation services.

• Example – DP World, DLF Mall

• Develop “Launch Girders” As A Regular Product and Enter This Booming Market Segment 

B) PRODUCTION CAPACITY & STORAGE CAPACITY 

• B1) UPGRADATION OF UNIT-3

• Covered Production Area Being Extended By 1050 Sqm

• Adjoining One (1) Acre Plot Taken on Lease To Meet Requirements Of Additional Storage Space 

• B2) FOLLOWING MAJOR EQUIPMENT BEING ACQUIRED TO DEBOTTLENECK PRODUCTION CAPACITY 
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• Beam Straightening Machine – Unit 2 

• Plasma Attachment for Strip Cutting Machine In Unit-3

• High Speed Drilling for Unit-3

• Additional EOT/Gantry  Cranes For Unit – 1, 3 & 4

C – RESULTANT TOTAL PRODUCTION CAPACITY 

• UNIT-1 : 1500 MT

• UNIT-2 : 800 MT

• UNIT-3 : 1000 MT

• UNIT-4 : 500 MT

D – Reduce Cycle Time and Achieve Higher Productivity 

E – Multi Skilling Of Labour Force

F – Reduce Rework and Thus Cost of Quality 

G – Reduce Paint Loss Factor & Material Cost

EMPLOYEE WELFARE SCHEMES

A.    Employees Welfare Fund
From April 1, we have introduced a new employee contributed policy Employees Welfare Fund which aims at providing 
urgent financial assistance to families in the unfortunate event of death of an employee.

Coverage : All Staff & above category employees of SISCOL

Benefits :

In the unfortunate case of death of a contributing member due to any reasons, his / her nominee will be paid 4 months 
of CTC (less variable pay) subject to a maximum of Rs 5 lacs and minimum of Rs 2 Lacs.

Funding:

Starting this month every member employee to contribute 1 day’s salary (CTC minus variable pay), 3 times a year i.e. 
once every 4 months and to create a corpus thereto.

B. Group Mediclaim Policy
We have introduced a Group Mediclaim Policy for SISCOL employees ensuring them medical benefits including cost of 
hospitalization.

Company : Care Health Insurance

Coverage : All SISCOL employees, across all levels, not under ESIC coverage

Benefits   :

• All Medical benefits including cost of hospitalization/ Cost of Medicines / Cabins or Rooms / Ambulances etc.

• All possible Covid coverage requirements

• Day Care Facilities Cover

• Corporate Buffer etc.

C. Personal Accident Insurance (Group) Policy
Any insured person shall sustain any injury resulting from an accident, the Insurance company shall pay to the Insured 
person or his/her nominee the sum described.

Company: National Insurance

Coverage: All SISCOL employees across all levels

Benefits: Insurance coverage to members in the event of the following:-

• Death

• Loss of Limbs or Eyes / Loss of other Body parts

• Permanent Partial Disablement
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• Temporary Total Disablement

• Permanent Total Disablement
 
With these initiatives we will be covering three important aspects of employee welfare namely Accidents, Medical 
treatment & Death while in employment, thereby protecting employees from all possible directions, to keep them happy 
& motivated, and providing much needed security to the employees.
 
Your Company is hopeful for better results as regards to future prospects and profitability of the Company.

Banking Facilities 
During the year, Your Company has secured Banking facilities for various purposes from HDFC Bank in the form of Fund 
Based & Non-Fund Based facilities, details are given below: -

S. No Type of Facility Limits
Utilisation as on 

31.03.2021

1 Cash credit INR in Crs 25.00 0.05

2 LC/BG INR in Crs 110.00 99.17

3 LC Bills Discounting INR in Crs 52.00 14.79

4 Term Loan INR in Crs 6.00 5.55

5 ECLGS Term Loan INR in Crs 3.60 3.60

6 Pre shipment Export Financing INR in Crs 5.00 -

7 Imprest Cash Card INR in Crs 0.40 -

TOTAL INR in Crs 202.00 122.86

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide its notification dated February 16, 2015, notified the applicability of Indian 
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) to be mandatory on listed companies and certain class of companies. It  is expected 
that these standards, will be made mandatory, in a phased manner to other Companies. 

In order to maintain the highest standards of Accounting Practices SISCOL has already adopted Ind AS and accordingly 
these financial results have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles stated 
therein.

Dividend 
No dividend has been proposed for the financial year 2020-21.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
The Composition of the Board of Directors & KMP as on date of report is as follows: -

S. No. Name of Director Designation

01. Mr. Ravi Uppal
Chairman 
& Managing Director

02. Mr. K. Rajagopal
Whole Time Director 
designated as Director-Finance

03. Mr. Niladri Sarkar
Wholetime Director 
designated as Director-Marketing

04. Mr. Ranjan Sharma Director

05. Mr. Arun Choudhari Director

06. Mr. Zarksis J Parabia Director

07. Mr. Siddharth Shah Director

08. Mr. Suraj Agarwal Company Secretary

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel during the year 2020-21 as per Companies Act 2013:-
During the year under review, there was no changes in Director/KMP/Company Secretary of the Company.
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Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Leadership Team
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COMMITTEES: -

(a) Finance /Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is comprising of following members:

S. No. Name of The Person Designation in Committee

01. Mr. Ranjan Sharma Chairman & Member

02. Mr. Ravi Uppal  Member

03. Mr. Arun Choudhari Member

All Members of the Audit Committee possess sufficient knowledge and experience in the field of Finance and Accounts. 

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR)
The CSR Committee is comprising of following members:

S. No. Name of The Person Designation in Committee

01. Mr. Zarksis J Parabia Chairman & Member

02. Mr. Arun Choudhari Member

03. Mr. Niladri Sarkar Member

Executive Sub Committee/ Corporate Management Committee (CMC)
The CMC Committee is comprising of following members:

S. No. Name of The Person Designation in Committee

01. Mr. Ravi Uppal  Chairman & Member

02. Mr. Kannabiran Rajagopal Member

03. Mr. Niladri Sarkar Member

Employee Stock Option Plan Committee (ESOP)
The ESOP Committee is comprising of following members:

S. No. Name of The Person Designation in Committee

01. Mr. Ravi Uppal  Chairman & Member

02. Mr. Ranjan Sharma Member

03. Mr. Siddharth Shah Member

Internal Complaints Committee (ICC)
The ICC Committee is comprising of following members:

S. No. Name of The Person Designation in Committee

01. Mr. K. Rajagopal Chairman & Member

02. Ms. Shweta Singh Member (HR)

03. Ms. Seema Sarkar Member

04. Ms. Nandini External Member 

The Mr. Suraj Agarwal, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the company will remain the Secretary to all these 
committees.

AUDITORS 
M/s PSAC & Associates was appointed as Statutory Auditors in 2nd AGM to hold office until the conclusion of 7th Annual 
General Meeting at a remuneration as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company.

They have furnished Consent Letter & Eligibility Certificate to the Company to continue for FY 2021-22 as well, which is 
in accordance with Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013.



30    Annual Report 2020–2021

Accordingly, During the year under review, there was no changes in Statuary Auditors of the Company.
       

Board’s comment on Auditors report 
The Observations of the Statutory Auditors when read together with relevant notes to the accounts and accounting 
policies are self-explanatory and do not calls for any further comment.

Cost Audit
Your Company provides end to end steel based solution covering complete value chain of activities ranging from design, 
engineering, fabrication, installation at site and project management for the diverse infrastructural projects which covers 
under Table – B of Central Excise Tariff Act (CETA). As per Companies Act, 2013 every company specified in item (B) 
of rule 3 shall get its cost records audited in accordance with these rules if the overall annual turnover of the company 
from all its products and services during the immediately preceding financial year is rupees one hundred crore or more 
and the aggregate turnover of the individual product or products or services for which cost records are required to be 
maintained under rule 3 is rupees thirty five crore or more. (Section 148 Table B, Rule 3)

Financial Year 2019-20 crossed the criteria of turnover which is more than 100 Crore as defined under Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 for conducting the Cost Audit of the Cost records in financial year 2020-21. Accordingly, During the 
year Company had Appointed Mr. CMA Arindam Goswami , Arindam & Associates , Cost and Management Accountants 
to conduct the audit for financial year 2020-21 for siscol. 

Secretarial Audit 
Your Company is a Private Unlisted Company but as per section 204 of Companies Act 2013 it does not require to 
conduct secretarial audit in this financial year.

Secretarial Standards
Your Company has complied with all the provisions as define under the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013.

Internal Financial Control 
Your Company has in-place an adequate internal financial control with reference to financial statements. Further 
the company has implemented integrated SAP ERP system covering sales, supply /stores management, Production, 
Finance, HR etc. which has in built process integration controls  and  enhanced System controls are being put in place 
progressively as system usage/coverage is becoming more stabilised in various areas.

Elaborate MIS systems Covering all areas of operations/functions ensures adequate controls in decision areas   while a 
well-defined organisation structure with clear roles/responsibilities establishes governance controls.

Corporate Social responsibility (CSR) 
Section 135 of Companies Act 2013 defines that every company having net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, 
or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately 
preceding financial year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of three or 
more directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director.

Provided that where a company is not required to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) of section 149, 
it shall have in its Corporate Social Responsibility Committee two or more directors.

The Board of every company referred to in sub-section (1), shall ensure that the company spends, in every financial year 
at least two percent of the average net profits of the company made during the three immediately preceding financial 
years  in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy:

Provided that the company shall give preference to the local area and areas around it where it operates for spending 
the amount earmarked for Corporate Social Responsibility activities.

Your Company was covered under these limit last year as net profit was more than 5 Crore as per financials of 2019-20, 
accordingly the company was require to contribute its 2 percent average profit of preceding 3 years on CSR activities 
in next FY 2020-21. (Details given on CSR Exp.) 

The average Profit as per section 198 for CSR is INR 287.11 Lakhs. Calculation of average Net Profit of last 3 years is 
given below:- (2% of 287.11 = 5,74,220)
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2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020

Net profit after tax* -21.95 102.42 521.76

Add : Expenses Disallowed

1 Income Tax - 32.36 226.73

2 Compensations, damages or payments made voluntarily - - -

3
Capital Loss on sale of undertaking or part thereof ( Not 
include losses on sale of asset )

- - -

4
Expenditure in P&L on measurement of asset or liability 
at fair value

- - -

* Net profit as per Section 198 for CSR Calculation -21.95 134.78 748.49

Your company has spent an amount of 5,54,552 in FY 2020-21 on CSR Activities like Manpower for Managing & 
Maintaining awareness of Corona Safety in locations near Factory Premises, Distribution of Sanitizer, Mask and Gloves to 
nearby localities, Sanitization done in Residential Locality nearby Factory Premises, Distribution of Digital Temperature 
Gun to Corporator for Public use in the Ward, Sound Box Speaker to provide Covid 19 Awareness in nearby localities with 
the help of Corporator etc details given below.

Statement of CSR Expenses for FY 2020-21

CSR Expenses Amount in INR

Manpower for Managing & Maintaining awareness of Corona Safety in locations near Factory 
Premises

                       
366,525 

Distribution of Sanitizer, Mask and Gloves to nearby localities
                         

94,823 

Sanitization done in Residential Locality nearby Factory Premises
                         

70,410 

Distribution of Digital Temperature Gun to Corporator for Public use in the Ward
                         

18,744 

Sound Box Speaker to provide Covid-19 Awareness in nearby localities with the help of 
Corporator

                           
4,050 

Total 554,552 

Balance amount (5,74,220 - 5,54,552 = 19,668) will be transferred in a separate bank account named Unspent CSR 
amount Account.
  

Prevention of sexual harassment (POSH) at workplace/SISCOL
The company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its women employees. During the year 
under review no cases were filed/reported under the sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act 2013.

Your company has formed an Internal Complaint Committee with the members having sufficient knowledge to 
safeguarding the interest of employees/workers of the Company.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY & VIGIL MECHANISM AT WORKPLACE/SISCOL
Whistle Blowing is nothing but calling the attention of Top level management to some mala-fide activities happening 
within an organization, this process is mandatory for all the Companies which have borrowed money from banks and 
public financial institutions in excess of fifty crore rupees or more.

This policy is intended to encourage Board members, staff (paid and volunteer) and others to report suspected or actual 
occurrence(s) of illegal, unethical, or inappropriate events (behaviours or practices) without retribution.

This Whistle Blower Policy, while protecting fully the whistle-blower, neither releases them of their duty over the 
confidentiality of company information, nor provides a route for taking up any personal grievances.
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Meetings of Board of Directors 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / business policy and strategy apart from other 
Board business. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled, and a tentative annual calendar of the Board and 
Committee Meetings is circulated to the Directors in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure 
meaningful participation in the meetings. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval 
can be taken by passing resolutions through circulation as permitted by Companies law, which will be confirmed in the 
subsequent Board meeting.

The Board of Directors duly met 7 (Seven) times during the financial year ended on 31st March 2021. The dates on which 
the meetings were held are as follows:

S. NO. TYPES OF MEETING DATE OF MEETING

1. Board Meeting 1st May 2020

2. Board Meeting 13th June 2020

3. Board Meeting 08th August 2020

4. Board Meeting 05th October 2020

5. Board Meeting 07th November 2020

6. Board Meeting 30th January 2021

7. Board Meeting 20th March, 2021

Details of attendance of Directors in the Board meetings:

S. No. Name of Director Type of Meeting
Total No. of Meeting 
Held during tenure

Meeting 
Attended  

1 Mr. Ravi Uppal                                Board Meeting 7 7

2 Mr. K. Rajagopal            Board Meeting 7 7

3 Mr. Niladri Sarkar    Board Meeting 7 7

4 Mr. Ranjan Sharma                         Board Meeting 7 7

5 Mr. Arun Choudhari Board Meeting 7 6

6 Mr. Zarksis J Parabia Board Meeting 7 7

7 Mr. Siddharth shah                         Board Meeting 7 7

Details of Committee Meetings:

S. No. TYPES OF MEETING DATE OF MEETING

1. Audit Committee 

13th June, 2020
08th August 2020
07th November 2020
30th January 2021

2. ESOP Committee 08th August, 2020

Subsidiary Company
The Company has no subsidiary, therefore no information required to be furnished.

Particulars of Employees
During the year under review, no employee whether employed for the whole of the year or part of the year was drawing 
remuneration exceeding the limit as laid down u/s 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, no comments required on 
Companies (particulars of employees) Rules, 2011.

Information Pursuant to Rule 5 (2) Of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
The Company has not appointed any employee(s) in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits specified under Rule 
5 (2) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

Directors Responsibility Statement 
Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (c) read with Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors state that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2021, the applicable Indian accounting 
standards (IND AS) and Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 have been followed with proper explanation 
relating to material departures, if any; 
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b. They have, in the selection of the accounting policies, consulted the Statutory Auditors and have applied them 
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2021 and of its Profit/Loss for the year ended on that date;

c. They have taken proper and sufficient care to the best of their knowledge and ability for the maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and

d. They have prepared the annual accounts for the year ended 31st March 2021 on a ‘going concern’ basis; and

e. They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Made Under Section 186 of The Companies Act, 
2013
The Company has not made any Investment, given any guarantee and securities during the year under review as per 
section 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

Deposits 
The Company has not accepted any deposits from Public during the year under review. However, the Company has 
received loans from Shareholders and making compliances as per section 73 of Companies Act 2013 applicable on 
Private Limited Company by filing yearly form DPT-3.

Changes in share capital of the Company during the year 2020-21
During the year under review, there was no changes in share capital of the Company.

ESOP Disclosures
As per requirement of Companies Act, 2013, The Board of directors shall inter alia disclose in the Directors’ Report for 
the year, the details of the Employees Stock Option Scheme, accordingly during the year under review following option 
were granted through ESOP Committee of the Company:-

Criteria applied in recommending is as per the scheme which is as below:
1. Only permanent employees on the rolls of the company who have completed 1 year & above and whose ratings 

are 4 or 5 .
2. Employees who have excellent/very good rating based on last year performance.
3. Employees selected should be the persons whom management wish to retain due to their potential to contribute 

to growth and development of the company.
4. Selected people who completed between 6-12 months as exceptional cases.
5. Workers /Foreman (Five Foreman who completed 12 months whose rating are very good / excellent are given).

Status of total options available for 2020 Scheme is given below:-

 ESOP

 Overall  position             No of options

Year

19-20 Board approval for no of options in 19-20 150,000

 Less: Allotted 96,000

 Available for this year from 19-20 approval 54,000

 Add : Board approval requested in 20-21 175,000

20-21 Available for this year 20-21 229,000

 Total being allotted in 20-21 now 210,000

 Total No of shares reserved for ESOP for Employees 1,500,000

 Less : Approval given in 19-20 -150,000

 less: Approval requested in 20-21 -175,000

 Balance available for future approvals 1,175,000
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Total 103 employees fulfilling the above criteria are recommended. In addition, 5 more candidates who have completed 
6 to 12 months service as on are recommended as exception considering the skillsets/experience whom management 
would like to retain to contribute to growth and development of the company.

Total employees recommended:  108
Total no. of options:  2,10,000

Extract of Annual Return 
Extract of Annual return in form MGT -9 as required U/S 92 of the Companies Act 2013 for the financial year ending 
March 31, 2021 to be uploaded on website (www.siscol.in) of the Company and making forms part of this report as per 
latest amendments in Companies Act.

Disclosures of amounts, if any, transfer to any reserves
It is not proposed to carry any amount to any reserves from the profits of the Company. Hence, disclosure under Section 
134 (3) (j) of the companies act, 2013 is not required.

Material Changes and Commitment If any Affecting the Financial Position of The Company 
Occurred Between End of The Financial Year to Which This Financial Statements Relate and The 
Date of The Report
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company occurred between the end of the 
financial year to which this financial statement relates and the date of this report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
OUTGO 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
The Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. the Company has made best efforts and adopted all relevant measures for conservation of the Company. 
The Company believes in sustainable development. The Company is undertaking all the necessary steps in energy 
conservation. The Company is also planning to utilize renewable sources of energy like solar energy as far as possible 
in its operations. 

Details of conservation of energy is given below:

Particulars 2019-2020 2020-21

  

1. Electricity  

a. Purchased  

Units        3,049,550 3,495,585 

Total Amount (In INR)      26,532,530  28,889,271 

        Rate/Unit     8.70 8.26 

b. Own Generation  

(i)   Through diesel generator  

Unit 6,994 5,123 

Total Amount in INR 192,600 144,918 

Rate/Unit in INR 27.54 28.29 

(ii) Through steam turbine    /generator  

Unit NIL NIL

Total Amount NIL NIL

Rate/unit NIL NIL

(2) Coal (specify quality and where used)   

        Quantity (tones) NIL NIL

        Total Cost NIL NIL
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        Average rate NIL NIL

(3) Furnace Oil   

       Quantity (K. Ltr.)   

       Total Amount in INR NIL NIL

       Average rate per kilo liter NIL NIL

(4) Other/internal generation   

       (Please give details)   

        Quantity NIL NIL

        Total Cost NIL NIL

        Average Rate NIL NIL

B. Consumption Unit Production

Structural Fabrication 2019-20 2020-21

Production (M.T.) 27,605  28,384 

Electricity (units per MT) 110 123 

Furnace oil (KL) NIL NIL

Coal (specify quality) NIL NIL

Others (specify) NIL NIL

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
The Company is undertaking adequate steps in technology upgradation and to enhance the usage of advanced 
technology for the project. Measures proposed including e-Governance and website development of the Company.

Statement of the same is given in Annexure-B.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND OUTGO

Foreign Exchange 2019-2020 2020-21

Earned (INR)        34,563,766                       -   

Received (in INR)        53,759,507                       -   

Outgo (in INR) 1,469,887           6,609,361 

Statement of the same is given in Annexure-B.

Risk Management Policy 
Risk management at SISCOL has enabled the Company to protect and enhance value and is designed to deliver upon 
its short and long-term objectives. A consistent and comprehensive risk management process has helped prepare 
organisation better for future eventuality.

The Company has a comprehensive Risk Management policy/system for risk identification, assessment and prioritization 
of risks followed by robust risk mitigation/minimization measures.

Details of Significant Material Orders Passed by The Regulators / Courts /Tribunal Impacting the 
Going Concern Status and Company’s Operation In Future
During the year under review, there has been no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunal 
which would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. Hence, disclosure pursuant to 
Rule 8 (5) (vii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements Made with Related Parties Made Pursuant to Section 
188 of The Companies Act, 2013
All contracts or arrangements with related parties, entered into or modified during the financial year, were on arm’s 
length basis or in the ordinary course of business (if any).
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Annexure “A”

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
FORM MGT-9

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014)

Financial Year ended on 31.03.2021

Available on www.siscol.in

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

 Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal        
 (Managing Director) (Director)
 DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666

Place: DELHI
Date: 15.05.2021

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

 Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal        
 (Managing Director) (Director)
 DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666

Place: DELHI
Date: 15.05.2021

In terms of section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder, Contracts or arrangements with 
related party were entered into during the year under review. Accordingly, the transactions are being reported in Form 
AOC-2 (enclosed as Annexure-C) in terms of Section 134 of the Act read with rules made thereunder In line with the 
requirements of the Act.

General Disclosures
(a)  The Board of Directors further states that during the Financial Year under review, there were no cases reported 

pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
(b)  There are no fraud cases which have to be recorded as per Fraud reporting as per the Companies (Amendment) 

Act,2015.
(c)  The Board Meeting/Shareholders approve the Resolution for issue of ESOP Shares and during the year under 

review. 

Acknowledgment
Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation received from banks, 
Govt, customers, vendors, and members during the year under review. Your directors also wish to place on record their 
deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by the company’s executives, staff, and workers.

Your Directors appreciate and value the trust imposed upon them by the members of the Company.   

The relations between the management and the staff were cordial during the period under review.
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ANNEXURE – B

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND 
OUTGO ETC:

Information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption, Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo required to be 
disclosed under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are provided 
hereunder:

(A) Conservation of Energy

The Disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation 
of energy pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. the Company has made best efforts and adopted 
all relevant measures for conservation of the Company. The 
Company believes in sustainable development. The Company 
is undertaking all the necessary steps in energy conservation. 
The Company is also planning to utilize renewable sources of 
energy like solar energy as far as possible in its operations.

(i) the steps taken or impact on:
conservation of energy

(ii) the steps taken by the company for 
utilizing alternate sources of energy

(iii) the capital investment on energy 
conservation equipment.

(B) Technology absorption

 
The Company is undertaking adequate steps in 
technology up gradation and to enhance the 
usage of advanced technology for the project. 
Measures proposed including E-Governance and 
website development of the Company.

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption

(ii) the benefits derived like product improvement, cost: 
reduction, product development or import substitution

(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during 
the: last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)
(a) the details of technology imported
(b) the year of import.
(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed
(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development.

Digital initiatives, Technology Development and Process Improvement Projects

1. Digital Initiatives

Usage of Smart glasses for remote sensing through augmented reality.  Customers can see plant facilities, progress of 
their jobs, online inspection and OEMs can suggest machine maintenance. 

Cost: 1.5 lakh Fixed cost – 1 lakh Rupees/annum usage license fee.

2. Operational Excellence 

GPS enabled dispatches for consignment tracking. Through this, customers, project management can track consignments, 
distance travelled, speed, route followed, stoppages taken etc. to monitor their shipment on real time basis and can 
predict accurate deliveries.

Cost: 3 lakhs (60 devices) , 2.5 Lakh – license and software expenses.

3. Process Improvement/Technology Enhancement

QR based tracking and monitoring of calibration status of Quality assets like inspection and test equipment while we 
expand and operate from multi locations and sites. 100% calibration status achieved through early warning online 
system generated reports. 

Cost: One time software cost : 0.8 lakh,  cloud storage : 0.2 lakh annually.
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BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

 Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal        
 (Managing Director) (Director)
 DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666

Place: DELHI
Date: 15.05.2021

4. Process Improvement in surface preparation and painting.

Mapping and making the painting processes leaner through improvement in the controls of paints during selection, 
procurement and application.  Nozzles are modified, process sequences changed to optimally utilize the paint 
consumption.  

Savings :  10 to 15% of painting cost 

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo 

Foreign Exchange 2019-2020 2020-2021

Earned (INR)        34,563,766  -   

Received (in INR)        53,759,507  -   

Outgo (in INR) 1,469,887  6,609,361 



Annual Report 2020–2021   39

ANNEXURE – C

FORM AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014) Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under 
third proviso is given below:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis:

Sl. No Particulars Details

A Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NA

B Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NA

C Duration of the contracts/arrangements /transaction NA

D Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value if any NA

E Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions NA

F Date of approval by the Board NA

G Amount paid as advances if any NA

H
Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required under first 
proviso to section 188

NA

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

SL. No. Particulars Details

a) Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship NIL

b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the value if any NIL

e) Date of approval by the Board NIL

f) Amount paid as advances if any NIL

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

 Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal        
 (Managing Director) (Director)
 DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666

Place: DELHI
Date: 15.05.2021
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Financial 
Statements
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited (“the 
Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and its profit/loss, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and 
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view 
of the financial position, financial performance, including other  comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
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opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements is 
included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government 

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure B a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
 a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
 b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books.
 c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow 

Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
 d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting 

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, as amended.

 e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

 f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

 g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:

 i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.
 ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses. 
 iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and       Protection 

Fund by the Company.
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Annexure A — Responsibilities for Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Annexure – B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

(Referred to in Para 2 of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Steel Infra Solutions 
Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on 
Information and Explanations provided by the Management)

 (i) In respect of the Company’s fixed assets:
 (a)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 

situation of fixed assets.
       (b) The fixed assets of the Company were physically verified by the management during the financial year, which, 

in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets and no 
material discrepancies between the book records and the physical inventory have been noticed.

 (c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and based on the 
examination of registered sale deeds provided to us, the title deeds of immovable properties of land and 
building are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. The building constructed by the 
Company is on lease hold land taken from District Trade & Industries Centre, Government of Chhattisgarh on 
long term lease basis.

 (ii) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year. 
Discrepancies noticed on physical verification were not material and the same have been properly dealt with in 
the books of accounts.

 (iii) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership 
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

 (iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantee and security to the parties 
covered under Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(iv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

 (v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted 
any deposits from the public, hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of 
sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under, 
are not applicable to the Company.

 (vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-section 1 of section 
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company is maintaining cost records under section 148(1) of the Act 
in respect of the Company’s product. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the records with a 
view to determining whether they are accurate or complete.

 (vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company as examined by 
us, in our opinion undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, 
goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues except Terminal Tax have generally 
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight delay in few cases. 
According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
to such statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2021, for a period more than six months from the date 
they became payable.

  (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and 
service tax, customs duty or cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

 (viii)  Based on our audit procedures and the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the 
opinion that the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institutions, 
bank, government or dues to debenture holders.

 (ix)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised money by way of 
initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) in the current year. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, term loan availed by the company were applied for the purposes for 
which the loan was obtained.

 (x)   During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported 
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the Management.

 (xi)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 197 are not applicable to 
a Private Limited Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xi) of the order is not applicable.
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 (xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, the requirements of clause 3(xii) of the Order do not apply 
to the company.

 (xiii)  In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided by the 
management, we are of the opinion that all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in 
the Financial Statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

 (xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance 
sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements of clause 3(xiv) of 
the Order are not applicable to the company and not commented upon.

 (xv)  On the basis of records made available to us and according to the information and explanations provided 
by the management, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with any of the directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company.

 (xvi)  As per the information and explanations received by us, the company is not a Non-Banking Financial Company 
(NBFC) and therefore not liable for registration u/s 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Annexure – C to the Independent Auditors’ Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub-section (3) of the section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited (“the 
Company”) as at March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year 
ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
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assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control 
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial  statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion 
In our opinion considering nature of business, size of operation and organizational structure of the entity, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India.
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See accompanying notes forming part of these financial statements. 1-44
The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

Financials

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Property, Plant and Equipment 4  5,243.68  5,350.98 

Right to Use Asset 6  167.70  169.05 

Capital Work-in Progress 4  8.13  5.30 

Other Intangible Assets 5  60.17  37.53 

Financial Assets

Non Current tax assets (Net) 7  -  11.65 

Non Current Assets (Net)

Other Non-Current assets 8  101.02  111.47 

Total Non-Current assets  5,580.70  5,685.97 

Current assets

Inventories 9  4,010.88  3,998.92 

Financial assets

Investments  -  - 

Trade Receivable 10  3,054.09  3,111.50 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 11  81.08  97.57 

Bank Balances Other than above 12  1,673.15  1,330.14 

Other Financial Assets 13  36.32  43.73 

Other Current Assets 14  1,581.88  589.44 

 10,437.40  9,171.31 

TOTAL ASSETS  16,018.10  14,857.28 

Particulars Note  As at  
31 March 2021 

 As at  
31 March 2020 
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STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27300DL2017PTC324842

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2021

Equity Share Capital 15  3,075.00  3,075.00 

Other Equity 16  1,415.53  602.23 

Total Equity  4,490.53  3,677.23 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 17  2,135.02  2,153.69 

Other Non Current Liabilities 18  88.45  85.71 

Deffered Tax Liabilities(Net) 19  297.19  165.89 

 2,520.66  2,405.29 

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 20  380.02  801.80 

Trade Payables 21

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and 
small enterprises; and

 496.06  140.13 

- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

 5,909.98  5,613.34 

Other Current Liabilities 22  2,187.76  2,199.96 

Provisions 23  33.08  19.54 

Current Tax Liabilities  - 

 9,006.91  8,774.76 

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  16,018.10  14,857.28 

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note  As at  
31 March 2021 

 As at  
31 March 2020 
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited

Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal Suraj Agrawal
Chairman &  Director-Finance Company Secretary
Managing Director
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Bhilai, May 15, 2021

Note Year ended 31 
March 2021

Year ended 31 
March 2020

 

Income 

Revenue from Operations 24  19,708.23  20,809.72 

Other Income 25  102.99  67.02 

Total Income  19,811.22  20,876.74 

Expenses

Cost of Material Consumed 26  10,523.87  14,409.50 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27  -  - 

Changes in Inventories of Goods 28  1,048.95  (1,523.32)

Employee Benefit Expense 29  2,206.52  2,187.48 

Finance Costs 30  704.26  919.58 

Depreciation and Amortisation 4 & 5  369.53  302.71 

Other Expenses 31  3,705.13  3,837.97 

Total Expenses  18,558.26  20,133.93 

Profit Before Tax  1,252.96  742.81 

Tax Expense:

Income Tax - Current Year  254.00  65.45 

Income Tax - Earlier year  59.48  27.75 

Deferred Tax Charge/ (Credit) 19  129.81  131.88 

Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations  809.67  517.73 

Other Comprehensive Income

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net of tax)

Actuarial gain for the year on Present Benefit Obligation  5.13  5.68 

Income tax expense on actuarial gain for the year on PBO  (1.49)  (1.65)

(ii) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss (net of tax)

Total Comprehensive Income for the period and Other Comprehensive 
Income  813.30  521.76 

Earning per share (equity shares, par value INR 10 each)

Basic & Diluted 35 2.64  1.70 
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For PSAC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
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CA. Ajay Somani
Partner
Membership no. 402750

Bhilai, May 15, 2021
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Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal Suraj Agrawal
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A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Number Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the year - As at 01 April 2020  30,750,000  3,075 

Changes in equity share capital duing the F.Y. 2020-21  -  - 

Balance at the end of the year 31 March 2021  30,750,000  3,075 

B. Other Equity

Particulars
 Reserve & Surplus 

 Total other equity 
 Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 01 
April 2019

 80.47  80.47 

Ind AS Adjustments as on 1st April 2019

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting 
period - April 1, 2019  80.47  80.47 

Profit for the financial year 2019-2020  521.76  521.76 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 31 March 
2020  602.23  602.23 

Profit for the financial year 2020-21  813.30  813.30 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 31 March 
2021  1,415.53  1,415.53 

See accompanying notes forming part of these financial statements. 1-44

The notes referred to above form an integral part of financial statements
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Operating activities

Profit before tax 1252.96 742.81 

Other Comprehensive Income 5.13 5.68 

Adjustments to reconcile Profit Before Tax to net cash flows

Depreciation & Amortisation 369.53 302.71

Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property, plant & equipment 17.68 0.00

Liability / Provisions no longer required written back/ written off(net) 0.00

Unrealised foreign exchange gain/loss 0.00

Interest Received (82.99)

Finance costs (Net) 704.26 919.58 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 2,266.56 1,970.78 

Working capital adjustments

Decrease/ (Increase) in Trade and Other Receivables 57.42 (61.42)

Decrease/ (Increase) in Inventories (11.96) (1312.62)

Decrease/ (Increase) in Non Current Financial Assets 1.35 1.35 

Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets 7.40 (17.35)

Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Non Current/ Current Assets 10.45 (35.77)

Decrease/ (Increase) in Non Current Tax Assets(net) 11.65 (5.51)

Decrease/ (Increase) in Other Current Assets (992.44) 334.81 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 652.58 496.07

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Non Current  Financial Liabilities 2.73 0.88

Increase/ (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities (433.97) 1638.64

Increase/ (Decrease) in Provisions 13.54 9.77

1,585.31 3,019.64 

Income - tax paid 313.48 93.20 

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (after 
exceptional)

1,271.83 2,926.44 

Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant & equipment, including CWIP and capital 
advances

(309.33) (1320.17)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 3.95 3.22 

Interest Received 82.99 0.00

Deposit with original maturity more than three months

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities (222.38) (1316.95)

Particulars Year ended 31 March 
2021

Year ended 31 March 
2020
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For PSAC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 012411 C

CA. Ajay Somani
Partner
Membership no. 402750

Bhilai, May 15, 2021

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited

Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal Suraj Agrawal
Chairman &  Director-Finance Company Secretary
Managing Director
DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666 M. No. 43787

Bhilai, May 15, 2021

Particulars Year ended 31 March 
2021

Year ended 31 March 
2020

Financing activities

Working Capital Borrowings from Banks/other short term loans (net)

Proceeds from long term Borrowings (18.68) (242.07)

Proceeds from Issuance of equity shares 0.00 75.00

Interest Paid (704.26) (919.58)

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities (722.94) (1086.65)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 326.51 522.83 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1427.72 904.89

Cash and cash equivalents at year end 1,754.23 1,427.72 

Components of cash and cash equivalent

Cash on hand 3.13 0.21

Cheques/Drafts in hand

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 77.95 97.37

On cash credit accounts 0.00 0.00

On deposits accounts with original maturity of more than three 
months

1673.15 1330.14

on others 0.00 0.00

Cash and bank balances 1754.23 1427.72

Cash and cash equivalents as per note 11 & 12 1,754.23 1,427.72 
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Significant Accounting Policies

1 Company overview
Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 12th October 2017 under the Companies Act, 2013 
as a private limited company wth its registered office located at D-66, Ground Floor, Hauz Khas, New Delhi, 110016

The main object of the Company is to carry on business to provide end to end steel based solutions covering complete value 
chain of activities ranging from design, engineering, fabrication, installation at site and project management for the diverse 
infrastructural projects. The fabrication facilities of the Company ares located at Plot No. 31, Light Industrial Area, Bhilai, 
Chhattisgarh, India - 490 026 and Plot No. 22C, Heavy Industrial Area, Bhilai, Chhattisgarh, India - 490 026.

2
A

Basis of accounting and preparation 
Statement of compliance:
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant 
provisions of the Act. To maintain the highest standards of Accounting Practies, the Company has voluntarily adopted Ind AS 
since its year of incorpration i.e. financial year 2017-18.

These financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant Ind AS that are 
effective at the Company’s annual reporting date 31 March 2021. These financial statements were authorised for issuance by 
the Company’s Board of Directors on 15th May 2021.

B Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the functional currency of the Company and the 
currency in which the Company operates. All amounts have been rounded off to nearest lakhs unless otherwise stated.

C Basis of measurement
The  financial statement have been prepared on a historical cost convention on the accrual basis, except for the following:

Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits obligations Present value of defined benefit obligations

D Use of estimates and judgements
While preparing the  Financial Information in conformity with Ind AS, the management has made certain estimates and 
assumptions that require subjective and complex judgments. These judgments affect the application of accounting policies 
and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the statement of 
assets and liabilities date and the reported amount of income and expenses for the reporting period. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
prospectively.

Judgement, estimates and assumptions are required in particular for:

(a) Determination of the estimated useful lives:
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. 
In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II and in case of intangible assets, these are 
estimated by management taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating 
conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and 
maintenance support.

(b) Recognition of deferred tax assets:
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-
forwards and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will 
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, depreciation carry-forwards and unused 
tax credits could be utilized.

(c) Recognition and measurement of defined benefit obligations:
The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial assumptions. Key actuarial assumptions 
include discount rate, trends in salary escalation,  actuarial rates and life expectancy. The discount rate is determined by 
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the underlying  
bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit obligations. Due to complexities involved in the 
valuation and its long term nature, defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions 
are reviewed at each reporting period.

(d) Impairment testing: 
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other assets are tested for impairment at least annually and when event 
occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the asset or cash generating units to which these 
pertain is less than its carrying value. The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair 
value less cost to dispose. The calculation of value in use of a cash generating unit involves use of significant estimates and 
assumptions which includes turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future 
cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, future economic and market conditions.

(e) Fair value measurement:
The company measures financial instrument such as investments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability - or
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• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available 
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the 
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as 
a whole:

• Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

E Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 :
The Company has assessed the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying 
amounts of receivables and unbilled revenues. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties 
in the economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements 
has used internal and external sources of information including reports and related information, economic forecasts. The 
Company has performed analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates expects the carrying amount 
of these assets will be recovered and the current circumstances are not expected to have any material financial impact. 

3 Significant accounting policies

3.1 Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is 
treated as current when it is:

• Expected to be realised in normal operating cycle or within twelve months after the reporting period

• Held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

• Cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after 
the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is current when:

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting   period or

• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash 
equivalents. The Company has identified period of twelve months as its operating cycle.

3.2 Financial instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument 
of another entity. Financial instruments also include derivative contracts such as foreign currency forward contracts.

Financial instruments also covers contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can be settled net in cash or another 
financial instrument, or by exchanging financial instruments, as if the contracts were financial instruments, with the exception 
of contracts that were entered into and continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a nonfinancial item 
in accordance with the entity’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instruments.

Recognition and initial measurement – financial assets and financial liabilities:
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in the Statement of profit and loss 
Financial guarantees, issued in relation to obligations of subsidiaries, are initially recognized at fair value (as part of the cost 
of the investment in the subsidiary).

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
The Company classifies financial assets as measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income 
(“FVOCI”) or fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”) on the basis of following:

- the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes 
its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortized cost:
A financial asset is classified and measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

-  the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual 
cash flows and



56    Annual Report 2020–2021

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”):
A financial asset is classified and measured at FVOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and 
selling financial assets and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal 
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present 
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on 
an investment by investment basis.

Fair value through profit and loss (“FVTPL”)
A financial asset is classified and measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI. This includes all 
derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise 
meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment
The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at investment 
level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information 
considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for each of such investments and the operation of those policies in practice.

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and 
how those risks are managed;

- the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and expectations 
about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for 
this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are 
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ 
is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as 
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company considers the 
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that 
could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this 
assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at 
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or 
dividend income, are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at 
amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The 
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses 
and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments 
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in 
statement of profit and loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the 
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to the Statement 
of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is 
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are 
measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. 

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense 
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is 
also recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iii) Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it 
transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.
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 Financial liabilities
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The 
Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms 
are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified 
terms is recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Offsetting financial instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the 
Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.3 Foreign currency transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the respective 
transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date 
are translated at the closing exchange rates on that date; the resultant exchange differences are recognised in the statement 
of profit and loss.

3.4 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the  Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits 
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash excluding restricted cash balance 
and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company’s cash management.

3.5 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby net profits before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of 
a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

3.6 Earnings per share 
The basic earnings / (loss) per share (‘EPS’) is computed by dividing the net profit / (loss) after tax for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings per share comprises the weighted average number of shares 
considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have 
been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted 
as of the beginning of the period unless issued at a later date. In computing dilutive earning per share, only potential equity 
shares that are dilutive i.e. which reduces earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.

3.7 Revenue Recognition

(i) Income from sale of goods

i. Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects that 
consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those product or services.
Deferred contract costs are incremental costs of obtaining a contract which are recognized as assets and amortized over the 
term of the Contract. The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of Profit and loss.
Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract 
liabilities.

ii. Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested with Banks and financial institutions. Interest income is 
recognized as it accrues in the Statement of profit and loss, using the effective interest method.

iii. Finance expenses consist of interest expense on loans and borrowings and other financial liabilities. The costs of these are 
recognized in the Statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method.

(ii) Percentage of Completion
The Company derives revenue from long term contracts including supply of specialized structures along with erection 
services which span over more than one accounting period and measures revenue as percentage on completion method. 
Performance obligations while rendering services are satisfied over time, as and when the services are rendered since the 
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company.

3.8
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and Net Realisable Value. 
Costs of inventories are determined on weighted average basis.
Cost of Raw Materials include cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location 
and condition. 
Cost of Finished Goods and Work in Progress include cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of Fixed and 
Variable Production Overheads allocated on full absorption cost basis
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs 
necessary to make the sale.

3.9 Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement:
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:
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a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

b) any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management.

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, the 
obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a 
particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in Statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure 
will flow to the Company.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date and the cost 
of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

(ii) Depreciation 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets as prescribed 
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company estimates the useful lives for property, plant and 
equipment as follows:

Asset categories Useful life in years
Building 30
Plant & Machinery 15
Computers 3
Software and License 3
Furniture and fixtures 10
Electrical Installations 10
Office equipments 5
Vehicles 8

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight line basis over the period of lease or the estimated useful life whichever 
is lower. Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives unless 
it is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. Leasehold land is amortised on 
a straight-line basis over the lease period of 93 years.

3.10 Intangible assets
(i) Recognition and measurement
Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the assets will 
flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortization and impairment. 

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects obsolescence, 
demand, competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known technological required to 
obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. 

Internally generated intangible assets
Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with prospect of gaining new scientific or technical knowledge and 
understanding, is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products and processes. 
Development expenditure is capitalised only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is 
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to and has sufficient 
resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, 
direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use, and capitalised 
borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in Statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to 
which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

(ii) Amortisation
Amortisation is calculated based on the cost of the asset, less its residual value.

Amortisation is recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible 
assets from the date that they are available for use. Management believes that period of amortisation is representative of the 
period over which the Company expects to derive economic benefits from the use of the assets.

Amortisation methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year-end. Amortisation on additions 
and disposals during the year is provided on proportionate basis. 

The estimated useful life of intangible assets are three years.

3.11 Impairment of financial assets 
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognizing impairment loss on financial assets measured at 
amortized cost, FVTPL, FVOCI, trade receivables and other financial assets. Expected credit loss is the difference between the 
contractual cash flows and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive discounted using effective interest rate.

Loss allowances for trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected 
credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial 
instrument. Lifetime expected credit loss is computed based on a provision matrix which takes in to the account risk profiling of 
customers and historical credit loss experience adjusted for forward looking information. For other financial assets, expected 
credit loss is measured at the amount equal to twelve months expected credit loss unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk from initial recognition, in which case those are measured at lifetime expected credit loss.
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3.12 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses long-lived assets such as property, plant, equipment and acquired / self generated intangible assets 
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or group of 
assets may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset or 
group of assets. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal 
(FVLCD) and its value-in-use (VIU). The VIU of long-lived assets is calculated using projected future cash flows. FVLCD of a cash 
generating unit is computed using turnover and earnings multiples. If the recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable 
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced 
to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
If at the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable 
amount is reassessed and the impairment losses previously recognized are reversed such that the asset is recognized at its 
recoverable amount but not exceeding written down value which would have been reported if the impairment losses had not 
been recognized initially.

3.13 Leases
Ind AS 116 Leases was notified by MCA on 30 March 2019 and it replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind 
AS 116 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration. 

The company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information 
has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

The company as a lessee:

The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is 
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at 
or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove 
the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier 
of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use 
assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental 
borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 

– Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 

– Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement 
date; 

– Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

– The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional 
renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a 
lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change 
in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company’s estimate of the 
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will 
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. 

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-
use asset, or is recorded in the statement of profit and loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 
to zero.

The company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and 
equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of financial position. (Refer note XX)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities for short term leases of real estate properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the 
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Under Ind AS 17: 

In the comparative period, as a lessee the company classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership as finance leases. Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases. The leasing transactions of 
the Company comprise of only operating leases.

Payments made under operating leases were recognised in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease unless such payments are structured to increase in line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the 
lessors expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives received were recognised as an integral part of the total lease 
expense, over the term of the lease. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

Arrangements in the nature of lease:

The Company enters into agreements, comprising a transaction or series of related transactions that does not take the 
legal form of a lease but conveys the right to use the asset in return for a payment or series of payments. In case of such 
arrangements, the Company applies the requirements of Ind AS 116 – Leases to the lease element of the arrangement. For 
the purpose of applying the requirements under Ind AS 116 – Leases, payments and other consideration required by the 
arrangement are separated at the inception of the arrangement into those for lease and those for other elements. 
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3.14 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits:
Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee 
benefits. These benefits include salaries and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense for the related service rendered 
by employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to a 
separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions 
towards employee provident fund and employees state insurance to a Government administered scheme which is a defined 
contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the 
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans
The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined benefit 
plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the 
current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value.

The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined by independent qualified actuary using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method which recognizes each period of service that give rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement 
and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation. 

The obligation is measured at present values of estimated future cash flows. The discounted rates used for determining the 
present value are based on the market yields on Government Securities as at the balance sheet dates. The Company classifies 
the gratuity as current and non-current based on the actuarial valuation report. 

Actuarial gains or losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. Further, the profit or loss does not include an 
expected return on plan assets. Instead net interest recognised in statement of profit and loss is calculated by applying the 
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return 
on the plan assets above or below the discount rate is recognised as part of re-measurement of net defined liability or asset 
through other comprehensive income.

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains or losses and return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability) are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

The Company have considered only such changes in legislation which have been enacted upto the balance sheet date for the 
purpose of determining defined benefit obligation.

Compensated absences
The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future service 
periods. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders 
the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured by independent qualified actuary using the Projected 
Unit Credit Method.

3.15 Taxation
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the Statement of profit and loss except 
to the extent it relates to a business combination, or items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

(i) Current income tax 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount 
expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax 
rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting dates.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised 
amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

(ii) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

• temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination 
and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

• temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

• taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are 
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will 
be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized deferred tax 
assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which they can be used.

3.16 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognized when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can 
be made of the amount of the obligation.
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The expenses relating to a provision is presented in the  Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement. 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the 
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Company recognises 
any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but will 
probably not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation of a present obligation in respect of which 
the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the  financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable. 
Commitments includes the amount of purchase order (net of advance) issued to parties for completion of assets. Provisions, 
contingent assets, contingent liabilities and commitments are reviewed at each closing date.

3.17 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to 
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of 
time to get ready for their intended use are capatalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrowing costs directly attributable 
to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are 
also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Other borrowing costs are 
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.18 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision 
Maker (CODM). The Company has only one business segment, which is sale of fabricated steel structure. Accordingly, the 
amounts appearing in these financial statements relate to this primary business segment. Further, the Company generates its 
income only in India and accordingly, no disclosures are required under secondary segment reporting.

3.19 Recent accounting pronouncements - Standards issued but not yet effective
Certain new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for annual period beginning after 
April 1, 2019 and have not been applied in preparing these financial statements. The new standards and amendments to 
standards are proposed to be effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2020. The Company intends to 
adopt these standards and amendments when they became effective.

The Standards that are issued, but not yet effective, are disclosed below: 

A. Issuance of new standard
Ind AS 117 – Insurance Contracts

Ind AS 117 supersedes Ind AS 104 Insurance contracts. It establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. Under the Ind AS 117 model, insurance 
contract liabilities will be calculated as the present value of future insurance cash flows with a provision for risk.

Application of this standard is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.

B. Amendments to existing Standards
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has carried out amendments of the following accounting standards:

(i) Ind AS 103 – Business Combination

The amendment is in connection with clarification of business definition, which help in determining whether an acquisition 
made is of a business or a group of assets. The amendment added a test that makes it easier to conclude that a Company 
has acquired a group of assets, rather than a business, if the value of the assets acquired is substantially all concentrated in 
a single asset or group of similar assets. 

The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 103 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.

(ii) Ind AS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements and Ind AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and 
Errors

The amendment is in connection with refinements to the definition of ‘Material’ and aligns this definition with other Ind AS. 
These refinements are intended to make the definition easier to understand and are not intended to alter the concept of 
materiality in Ind AS. The amended definition states that information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could 
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial statements make on the 
basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.

The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 1 and Ind AS 8 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial 
statements.

(iii) Ind AS 40 – Investment Property

Ind AS 40 states that an investment property shall be measured initially at cost and for measurement after recognition, cost 
model shall be adopted for all the investment property. The amendment is in connection with an addition of option to measure 
all investment property after recognition as per fair value model. However, the amendment also gives an exception which 
states that an entity may:

(a) choose either the fair value model or the cost model for all investment property backing liabilities that pay a return linked 
directly to the fair value of, or returns from, specified assets including that investment property; and

(b) choose either the fair value model or the cost model for all other investment property, regardless of the choice made in (a

The adoption of amendment to Ind AS 40 is not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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4. Property, Plant & Equipment
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Gross carrying value (Cost/
Deemed cost)

As at 01st April, 2019  158.02  37.88  1,799.14 103.30  1,824.55  44.64  30.01  73.91  9.80 4,081.25 

Additions  75.58  27.99  570.65  (0.00)  877.54  58.76  28.73  33.69  6.19 1,679.15 

Disposals  3.22  3.22 

Other adjustments  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020  233.60 65.87 2,369.79 103.30  2,698.87 103.41  58.74 107.60 15.99 5,757.18 

Additions  4.74  13.52  43.27  -  165.29  13.59  5.34  8.37  -  254.10 

Disposals  21.63  21.63 

Other adjustments  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  238.34 79.39 2,413.06 103.30  2,842.53  116.99  64.08  115.98 15.99 5,989.66 

Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation As 
at 01st April, 2019  8.65  4.16  42.46  0.82  58.46  6.73  1.28  4.25  0.78  127.60 

Charge for the year  18.08  10.82  65.14  3.27  139.68  24.47  4.90  10.48  1.78  278.61 

Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

Accumulated Depreciation 
As at 31st March, 2020  26.73  14.98  107.60 4.089  198.14  31.20  6.18  14.73  2.55  406.20 

Charge for the year  22.28  13.54  75.17  3.27  175.26  32.93  3.24  12.11  1.98  339.78 

Disposals  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  49.01 28.52  182.77  7.36  373.40  64.13  9.41  26.84  4.53  745.98 

Net Carrying value

As at 31st March, 2020  206.87  50.89  2,262.20  99.21  2,500.73  72.21  52.56  92.87  13.44 5,350.98 

As at 31st March, 2021  189.32 50.87 2,230.30  95.94  2,469.13  52.86  54.66  89.13 11.46  5,243.68 

Capital Work In Progress

As at 31st March, 2020  5.30 

As at 31st March, 2021  8.13 

Amortization  Finance Lease 
Asset  Total

Charge for the year  1.35  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  1.35 
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5. Intangible Assets

Particulars Software & License Total

Gross carrying value (Cost/Deemed cost)

As at 01st April, 2019  70.30  70.30 

Additions  3.88 3.88

Disposals  -  - 

Other adjustments  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2020  74.18  74.18 

Additions  51.04  51.04 

Disposals  -  - 

Other adjustments  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  125.21  125.21 

Depreciation

Accumulated Depreciation As at 01st April, 2019  13.88  13.88 

Charge for the year  22.76  22.76 

Disposals  -  - 

Accumulated Depreciation As at 31st March, 2020  36.65  36.65 

Charge for the year  28.40  28.40 

Disposals  -  - 

As at 31st March, 2021  65.05  65.05 

Net Carrying value

As at 31st March, 2020  37.53  37.53 

As at 31st March, 2021  60.17  60.17 

6. Right to Use Asset 

 Particulars  As at  
31 March 2021 

 As at  
31 March 2020 

 Finance Lease Asset  167.70  169.05 

 167.70  169.05 

7. Non-current tax assets (net) 

 Particulars  As at  
31 March 2021 

 As at  
31 March 2020 

Advance Income Tax  -  15.00 

Tax Deducted at Source  -  62.11 

 Less: Current Tax  -  (65.45)

 -  11.65 
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8. Other Non-current Assets 

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Security Deposits  101.02  111.47 

 101.02  111.47 

9. Inventories (measured at cost or net-realisable value which ever is lower)

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Raw Materials  1,773.88  1,025.06 

 Work-in-Progress  1,613.59  2,579.51 

 Finished Goods  66.14  140.99 

 Stores & Spares  556.32  244.23 

 Scrap  0.95  9.14 

 4,010.88  3,998.92 

10. Trade Receivable

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Unsecured, considered good  3,054.09  3,111.50 

 Doubtful  -  - 

 Provision for doubtful debts  -  - 

 3,054.09  3,111.50 

i) No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any 
other person. Further, no trade receivables are due from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a 
member.

ii) All amounts are short term. The net carrying value of trade receivable is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

11. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Cash on hand  3.13  0.21 

 Balances with banks 

- in Cash Credit Accounts  -  - 

- in Current Accounts  77.95  97.37 

 81.08  97.57 
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12. Bank Balances Other than Above 

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Balances with banks  

 - in fixed deposits with original maturity for more than 3 months 
 - but less than or equal to 12 months* 

 1,673.15  1,330.14 

 1,673.15  1,330.14 

 * Pledged with banks towards margin for Non Fund Based Working Capital Limit. 

13. Other Current Financial Assets 

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Accrued Interest   32.69  40.09 

 Export Benefit Receivables  3.63  3.63 

 36.32  43.73 

14. Other Current Assets 

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Contract Asset  153.00  119.69 

 Contract Receivable (Receivable from Customer)  984.33  71.31 

 Capital Advances  3.18  6.18 

 Advance to Suppliers  132.74  12.53 

 Advances to Staff  9.44  0.10 

 Prepaid Expenses  125.16  155.58 

 Balance with Statutory Authorities:  - 

- Goods & Services Tax  174.03  224.03 

 1,581.88  589.44 
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15. Equity 

Particulars  As at  
31 March 2021 

 As at  
31 March 2020 

Authorised capital  3,500.00  3,500.00 

35,000,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (31 March 2020: 35,000,000 of INR 10 each)

Issued, subscribed and paid-up 3,075.00 3,075.00

30,750,000 equity shares of INR 10 each (31 March 2020: 30,750,000 of INR 10 each)

3,075.00 3,075.00

Notes:

a) Equity shareholders holding of Promoters and Shareholders holding more than 1 percent shares in the Company:*

Name of the shareholder

As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 %  No. of shares No. of shares

M/s. MK Ventures 24.55%  7,550,000  7,550,000 

Mr. Ravi Uppal (Promoter) 22.44%  6,900,000  6,900,000 

M/s. Surin Holdings 16.26%  5,000,000  5,000,000 

Mr. Ranjan Sharma 9.76%  3,000,000  3,000,000 

M/s. Wharton Engineers & Developers (P) Ltd 9.76%  3,000,000  3,000,000 

M/s. 3One4 Meridian Trust 6.50%  2,000,000  2,000,000 

Mr. Zarksis J Parabia 3.25%  1,000,000  1,000,000 

Mr. Nekzad J Parabia 3.25%  1,000,000  1,000,000 

Mr. K. Rajagopal (Promoter) 1.51%  465,000  465,000 

Mr. Niladri Sarkar (Promoter) 1.25%  385,000  385,000 

Others 1.46%  450,000  450,000 

100%  30,750,000  30,750,000 

* As per the records of the Company, including its register of members

b) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year is as given below:

Particulars  As at  
31 March 2021

Numbers Amount (INR lakhs)

Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  30,750,000  3,075 

Number of equity shares issued during the year  -  - 

Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year  30,750,000  3,075 

c) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of the equity 
share, as reflected in the records of the Company as of the date of the shareholder meeting, is entitled to one vote in respect of each 
share held for all matters submitted to vote in the shareholders’ meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the 
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts exist currently. The distribution will be 
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d) Buyback of shares and shares allotted by way of bonus shares:

The Company has not allotted any fully paid-up equity shares by way of bonus shares nor has it bought back any class of equity 
shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date nor has it issued shares for consideration other 
than cash.
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16. Other Equity

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

(i) Retained Earnings

Surplus/(Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss

Opening balance  602.23  80.47 

Add: Profit for the year  813.30  521.76 

 1,415.53  602.23 

 1,415.53  602.23 

Security premium reserve
This represents premium on issue of share which exceeds the paid up capital of the Company.

Retained Earnings
Retained earnings comprises of prior years’ undistributed earnings/(losses) after taxes

17. Borrowings - Long-term

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Secured

Term Loan from Bank  572.23 555.56

Equipment Loan from Bank  62.84  94.47 

635.06 650.02

Security and terms & conditions for above loans:

Term Loan from Bank
Term Loan fromHDFC Bank Limited with total tenor of 48 month including 12 month moratorium and 36 month repayment. Interest 
rate of 9.5% per annum for Term Loan of INR 3 Crores and 9.5% for Term Loan of INR 7 Crores linked to one year MCLR.

Primary Security
Plant & Machinery - exclusive charge on entire present & future movable fixed asset of the company.

Secondary Security
Current Asset - Present & Future current asset of the company Factory Land & Building - Equitable mortgage on Land & Building 
located at Plant at Plot No - 31, Light Industrial Area, Bhilai(C.G)  Plant at Plot No - 22, Heavy Industrial Area, Bhilai(C.G) Plant & 
machinery - Current & future movable fixed asset of the company.

Equipment Loan from Bank
Primary Security
Term Loan from HDFC Bank is secured by an exclusive charge by Hypothecation of Equipment purchased out of the said loan.

GECL Loan from Bank
GECL Loan of INR 3.60 Crores from HDFC Bank is secured by extension of existing charge. This loan carries interest rate 8.25% and 
repayable in 36 EMI’s after 12 months moratorium.

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Secured

Vehicle Loan from Bank  - 3.71

0.00 3.71

Primary Security
Term Loan from Vijaya Bank is secured by an exclusive charge by Hypothecation of Vehicle purchased out of the said loan.
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Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Unsecured

Loan from Body Corporate  428.57 

Loan from Directors and Shareholders  1,071.39  1,499.96 

 1,499.96  1,499.96 

Terms of Unsecured loan:
Loans from directors and shareholders are repayable after more than one year and it is bearing an interest rate equal to the rate of 
interest applicable to Bank’s Term Loan to the Company.

Terms of Intercorporate Deposit:
Loans from Body Corporate is repayable after more than one year and it is bearing an interest rate equal to the rate of interest 
applicable to Bank’s Term Loan to the Company.

18. Other Non Current Liabilities

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Future Repayment of Lease Liability  88.45 85.71

 88.45  85.71 

19. Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

 Minimum Alternate Tax - Credit Entitlement  -  - 

 Deferred tax liability on: 

 Difference between book balance and tax balance of property, 
plant and equipment 

 300.96  173.21 

Income tax expense on actuarial gain for the year on PBO  -  - 

 Deferred tax asset on: 

 Provision for Gratuity  3.77  2.46 

 Disallowance u/s 43B  -  4.86 

 Carried Forward Losses  -  - 

 297.19  165.89 

20. Borrowings

 Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowing  374.96 363.92

Working capital facility - Secured

From Banks  5.06  437.88 

 380.02  801.80 

Working Capital facility from Bank
Cash Credit from HDFC Bank Limited  repayable on demand. Interest rate of 8.25% per annum linked to one year MCLR.

Primary Security
Secured first charge on Inventories and Book Debts of the company.

Secondary Security
Plant & Machinery - exclusive charge on entire present & future movable fixed asset of the company.
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21. Trade payables  (including acceptances)

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises  496.06  140.13 

Others  5,909.98  5,613.34 

 6,406.04  5,753.47 

a) The carrying values of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. 

b) Acceptances include arrangements where operational suppliers of goods and services are initially paid by banks while the 
Company continues to recognise the liability till settlement with the banks which are normally effected within a period of 90 days.

22. Other Current Liabilities

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Contract Liability (Advance from Customer)  2,045.67 2,140.56

Lease Liability  5.89 8.63

Statutory Dues Payable:

Tax Deducted & Collected at Source  17.16 23.23

Income Tax Payable (Net of Advance Tax & TDS)  119.04 27.54

2,187.76 2,199.96

23. Provisions - Current

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Expenses:

Employee Benefits  33.08 19.54

Others  -  - 

33.08 19.54

* The provision of all known liabilities is adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

24. Revenue from Operations

Particulars  For the year ended  
31 March 2021 

 For the year ended  
31 March 2020 

(a) Sale of Products & Services

Finished Goods  18,955.51  19,919.28 

Erection Services  135.92  430.37 

(b) Other Operating Income

Scrap Sales  526.67  334.76 

Freight Revenue  70.70  106.73 

Export Incentives  -  9.52 

Exchange Rate Difference  (0.58)  9.05 

Other Miscellaneous Operating Income  20.00  - 

 19,708.23  20,809.72 



70    Annual Report 2020–2021

STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27300DL2017PTC324842

Notes on the financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2021

(All amounts in INR lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

25. Other Income

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

Interest on Bank Deposits  82.99  66.66 

Interest Subsidy  20.00  0.36 

 102.99  67.02 

26. Cost of Material Consumed

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

Inventories at the beginning of the year  1,269.29  1,479.99 

Add: Purchases  11,584.78  14,198.80 

Less: Inventories at the end of the year  2,330.20  1,269.29 

 10,523.87  14,409.50 

27. Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

 -  - 

 -  - 

28. Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock -in- trade & work -in- progress and scrap

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

Opening stock 

Finished Goods  140.99  12.42 

Work-in-progress  2,579.51  1,193.23 

Scrap  9.14  0.67 

Closing  stock

Finished Goods  66.14  140.99 

Work-in-progress  1,613.59  2,579.51 

Scrap  0.95  9.14 

 1,048.95  (1,523.32)

29. Employee benefits expense

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

Salary  2,091.87  2,035.03 

Contribution to Provident & Other Funds  94.78  97.59 

Staff Welfare  19.87  54.87 

 2,206.52  2,187.48 

30. Finance cost

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

Interest  570.24  737.07 

Commission for Letter of Credit & Bank Guarantee  121.27  152.05 
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Other Bank Charges  12.74  30.46 

 704.26  919.58 

31. Other expenses

Particulars For the year ended  
31 March 2021

For the year ended  
31 March 2020

Communication Expenses 14.90  13.91 

Consumption of Power & Fuel 334.97  281.82 

Contract Labour Charges 801.02  742.86 

Corporate Social Responsibility 5.54  8.35 

Courier and Postage 3.57  9.55 

Design & Engineering Charges 23.64  29.51 

Factory Houskeeping 37.55  45.16 

Freight Inward 99.03  163.00 

Freight Outward 472.90  421.31 

Information Technology 37.00  41.41 

Inspection Charges 35.52  15.70 

Insurance 14.66  14.90 

Job Work Charges  1,081.60  1,414.00 

Loss on Sale/Discard of PPE 17.68  - 

Material Handling 424.21  265.13 

Miscellaneous Expense 19.93  15.94 

Office Maintenance 20.90  25.72 

Other Manufacturing Expenses 17.72  3.37 

Payment to Statutory Auditor (refer note 33) 3.74  4.54 

Printing & Stationary 8.01  9.34 

Professional and Legal Fees 7.85  9.44 

Rate & taxes 32.29  25.43 

Registration & Other Charges 4.77  5.10 

Rent 57.48  63.62 

Repair and Maintenance:

-Building 3.11  4.55 

-Plant and machinery 5.40  6.65 

-Others 14.91  15.64 

Security Expenses 45.21  46.83 

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 60.05  135.20 

 3,705.13  3,837.97 
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32. Contingent liabilities and commitments

Particulars
 For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021 

 For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020 

a. Contingent liabilities

Guarantees issued by the Company’s Bankers on behalf of the Company* 3945.16 3695.89

* Company has provided bank guarantees to customers against advance received and performance of the product supplied.

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts/ supplies remaining to be executed on capital 
account and not provided for (net of advances)

20.84  2.57 

33. Auditors’ remuneration excluding applicable tax

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

As auditor

- Audit Fees 3.24 3.60

- Certification 0.30 0.19

- Consultancy 0.20 0.75

3.74 4.54

34. Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under, to the 
extent the Company has received intimation from the ‘Suppliers’ regarding their status under the Act:

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

i) Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each 
supplier at the end of each accounting year (but within due date as per the 
MSMED Act)

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises:  496.06  140.13 

Interest due on above:  -  - 

ii) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during the period

 -  - 

iii) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which 
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without 
adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 
2006

 -  - 

iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each 
accounting year

 -  - 

v) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until 
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small 
enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure 
under section 23.

 -  - 

Dues to Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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35. Earnings per share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share :

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders  813.30  521.76 

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each used for calculation 
of basic earnings per share 

30,750,000 30,733,607

Earnings per share, basic and diluted*  2.64  1.70 

*The Company has no potentially dilutive equity shares

36. CSR Expenses

As per the provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend on corporate social 
responsibility (CSR). Company has spent following amount on CSR expenses:

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Amount spent during the year on

i) On COVID-19 safety and awareness around factory premises  5.54 0.00

i) On purchase of Protein Powder for distribution 8.35

5.54 8.35

37. Movement in each class of provision during the financial year are provided below:

Particulars Employee 
Benefit  Others  Total 

As at 01st April 2020 19.54 - 9.76

Provision during the year 13.54 0 13.54

Contribution made  - -  - 

Remeasurement gain accounted for in OCI  - -  - 

Payment during the year  - -  - 

Interest Cost  - -  - 

As at 31st March 2021  33.08 -  23.30 

As at 31st March 2021

Current 0.13

Non-Current 32.95

38. Employees Benefits’, in accordance with Accounting Standards (Ind AS-19):

A.  The Company has a defined gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on 
departure at 15 days’ salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service.
B.  The Actuary has provided a Gratuity Liability and based on below assumptions made a provision of INR 13.54 Lakhs as at 31st 
March 2021 (Previous Year  INR 9.78 Lakhs as at 31st March 2020).
C.  The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

I. Expense recognized for Defined Contribution Plan*
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Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Company’s contribution to provident fund 102.87 99.99

Company’s contribution to ESI 11.32 12.06

114.19  112.05 

* Included under the head employees benefit expenses - Refer Note 29.

Below table sets forth the changes in the projected benefit obligations as at 31st March 2021:

II. Movement in Obligation

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Present value of obligation - March 31, 2020  19.54  9.54 

Acquisition/ Transfer in/ Transfer out  -  - 

Current Service Cost 17.35 14.71

Past Service Cost

Interest Cost  1.33  0.75 

Benefits Paid  -  - 

Total Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Obligation  (5.13)  5.68 

Present value of obligation - March 31, 2021  33.09  19.54 

III. Recognized in Profit & Loss*

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Total Service Cost 12.21 9.03

Net Interest Cost 1.33 0.75

For the year ended on March 31st, 2021 13.54 9.78

IV. Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/ (loss) opening  -  - 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on PBO  5.13  5.68 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) for the year on Asset

Unrecognized actuarial gain/ (loss) at the end of the year  5.13  5.68 

V. The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company’s defined benefit obligations are set out below:

Weighted average actuarial assumptions
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Discount Rate 6.79% 6.80%

Future Salary Increase 2.00% 2.00%

Mortality & Morbidity Rate 100% of IALM (2006-08)

The assumption of future salary increase takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as 
supply and demand in employment market.
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The Company has not contributed towards any plan assets till 31st March 2019, therefore no details have been provided.

VI. Sensitivity Analysis of the defined benefit obligation:

a) Impact of the change in discount rate
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 33.08 19.54

Impact due to increase of 0.50%  (2.33)  (1.31)

Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 2.59 1.45

b) Impact of the change in future salary increase
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the period 33.08 19.54

Impact due to increase of 0.50%  2.70  1.51 

Impact due to decrease of 0.50%  (2.45)  (1.37)

VII. Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation:

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

0 to 1 Year  0.13  0.07 

1 to 2 Year  0.05  0.06 

2 to 3 Year  0.74  1.86 

3 to 4 Year  1.54  0.46 

4 to 5 Year  1.44  0.57 

5 to 6 Year  0.54  0.73 

06 Year onwards 28.63 15.67

39. Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

Class wise composition of carrying amount and fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial 
statements is given below:

Particulars  Carrying 
Amount  Fair Value 

 As at 31st March, 2021 

Financial Assets at amortised cost

Fixed Deposits with banks (Current) 1673.15 1673.15

Cash and bank balances 81.08 81.08

Trade Receivables 3054.09 3054.09

Other financial assets (Non Current) 167.70 167.70

Other financial assets (Current)  36.32 36.32

Financial Liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowing (Non Current) 2135.02 2135.02

Borrowing (Current) 380.02 380.02

Trade Payables 6406.04 6406.04

Other financial liabilities (Non Current) 88.45 88.45

Other financial liabilities (Current)  -  - 

The Company uses hierarchy for fair value measurement of the company’s financial assets and liabilities as per accounting policies 
as laid down in significant accounting policy.
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40. Related party transaction

List of Related Parties and Relationships

a) Subsidiaries                          - Nil

b) Key Management Personnels

1. Shri Ravikant Uppal  (MD & CEO)

2. Shri Kannibiran Rajagopal (Wholetime Director)

3. Shri Niladri Sarkar (Wholetime Director)

4. Shri Ranjan Sharma (Non Executive Director)

5. Shri Arun Choudhari (Non Executive Director)

6. Shri Zarksis Jahangir Parabia (Non Executive Director)

7. Shri Siddharth Shashikant Bhai Shah (Non Executive Director)

c) Enterprise over which Key Management Personnel and their relatives exercise significant influence and with whom 
transactions have taken place during the year

1. Surin Holdings LLP

2. Wharton Engineering & Developers (P) Ltd.

3. JH Parabia Transport Pvt. Ltd.

4. M K Ventures

Related party transactions:

a. with Key Management Personnels

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Director’ Remuneration 243.71  179.19 

Interest paid on Unsecured Loans by the Company 31.33  41.37 

Loan taken by the Company  - 

Allotment of Sweat Equity Shares  -  75.00 

b. with Enterprises controlled by Key Management Personnel & their relatives

Particulars
For the year 

ended  
31 March 2021

For the year 
ended  

31 March 2020

Crane Hire Charges paid by the Company 0.00  4.10 

Interest paid on Unsecured Loans by the Company 71.73  55.16 

Asset Purchase by the Company 0.00  8.00 

Loan repaid by the Company 428.57

Loan taken by the Company  - 0.00

Amounts outstanding as at the balance sheet date:

a. with Key Management Personnels

Particulars  As at  
31 March 2021 

 As at  
31 March 2020 

Unsecured Loan taken by the Company (Cr. Balance) 321.43 321.43

b. with Enterprises controlled by Key Management Personnel & their relatives

Particulars As at  
31 March 2021

As at  
31 March 2020

Unsecured Loan taken by the Company (Cr. Balance) 0.00 428.56
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For, PSAC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 012411 C

CA. Ajay Somani
Partner
Membership No. 402750

Bhilai, May 15, 2021

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Steel Infra Solutions Private Limited

Ravi Uppal K. Rajagopal Suraj Agrawal
Chairman &  Director-Finance Company Secretary
Managing Director
DIN: 00025970 DIN: 00135666 M. No. 43787

41. Impairment Review   

Assets are tested for impairment whenever there are any internal or external indicators of impairment.   

During the year, the testing did not result in any impairment in the carrying amount of goodwill and other assets.  

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations:   

 - Operating margins (Earnings before interest and taxes)   

 - Discount Rate   

 - Growth Rates   

 - Capital expenditures   

42. Balances of certain advances, trade creditors and trade receivables are in process of confirmation/reconciliation. 

43. Previous year figures have been regrouped/rearranged/recast, wherever considered necessary to conform to current year’s 
classification.   

44. Notes 1 to 44  are annexed to and form an integral part of financial statement.
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Registered Office: 
D-66, GF, Hauz Khas,

New Delhi 110 016
Tel: +91-11-4023 4817/14 

Website: www.siscol.in

Notice is hereby given that the Forth  (4th) Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the members of Steel Infra Solutions 
Private Limited will be held at shorter notice on Saturday, May 15, 2021 at 04.30 P.M. through Video Conferencing 
(VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business(es):- 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

ITEM NO. 1:
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2021, together with the 
Board’s Report and Auditors’ Report thereon. (Annx-I,II,III,IV)

ITEM NO. 2: 
To Confirm & Finalize Remuneration of M/s PSAC & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number 
012411C) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for Financial Year 2021-22:-

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, 
as amended from time to time, Consent Letter & Eligibility Certificate received from M/s. PSAC & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants  (Firm Reg. No. 012411C), the Statutory  Auditors of the Company be and is hereby accepted for financial 
year 2021-22 at a fixed remuneration of Rs. 3,60,000/- plus taxes for FY 2020-21, which to be reviewed/revised every 
year. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or Mr. Suraj Agarwal, Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary in this regard to give effect to the 
above resolution and to file any such form in the Registrar of Companies”. 

(Audit Fee Break-up is given below)

S.
No. Particulars

Amount (in INR) Amount (in INR)
Remarks

FY 2021 - 2022 FY 2020 - 2021

1
Statutory Audit under the 
Companies Act, 2013

2,50,000 2,25,000 plus applicable GST

2
Tax Audit under the Income Tax 
Act, 1961

75,000 67,500 plus applicable GST

3
GST Audit under the Goods and 
Services Tax Act, 2017

35,000 31,500 plus applicable GST

Total 3,60,000 3,24,000 plus applicable GST

Consent Letter under section 139 & Eligibility Certificate under section 141 of Companies Act, 2013 is attached as 
“Annexure III” to the agenda for the perusal of the Company.

NOTICE
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SPECIAL BUSINESS

ITEM NO. 3: 

(1) (i) APPROVAL OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22
     (ii) SCHEME FOR VARIABLE PAY FOR MANAGING DIRECTOR & WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR(S) FOR FINANCIAL YEAR 21-22

(2) PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION (VARIABLE PART) OF MANAGING DIRECTOR & WHOLE-TIME DIRECTOR(S) RELATED TO  
FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21 AS PER SCHEME OF VARIABLE PAY ON ACHIEVEMENT OF TARGETS

Notes:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND 

VOTE ON A POLL IN THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY. 

2.  An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special 
Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed herewith. 

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting are requested to 
send a certified copy of the Board Resolution/Authority Letter of the Company, authorizing their representative to 
attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

4. The instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed in all respect, must be deposited at the Company’s Registered 
office not less than 48 hours before commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed.

5. The Notice of the 4th AGM along with the attendance slip and Proxy Form, are being sent by electronic mode 
to all members whose email addresses are registered with the Company, unless a member has requested for a 
physical copy of the documents. For members who have not registered their email addresses, physical copies of 
the documents are being sent by the permitted mode.

6. All documents referred to in the notice and the explanatory statement requiring the approval of the Members at 
the Meeting and other statutory registers shall be available for inspection by the Members at the registered office 
of the Company during office hours till the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

 

BY THE ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FOR STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

SURAJ AGARWAL
COMPANY SECRETARY

 
PLACE: DELHI
DATE:  15th MAY, 2021
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD. 
CIN: U27300DL2017PTC324842

Registered Office: D–66, GF, Hauz Khas, New Delhi 110 016
Tel: +91-11-4023-4817 Website: www.siscol.in

I hereby record my presence at the 4th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Steel Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. on Saturday, May  
15, 2021 at 04.30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM).

Folio No................................................DP ID.................................................Client ID....................................................................

Name of Member................................................................................................................................................................................

Name of Proxy Holder....................................................................................................................................................................

Number of Shares Held....................................................................................................................................................................  

Signature of Member/Proxy
 
Notes: Members/Proxy holders are requested to produce the attendance slip duly signed for admission to the Meeting 
Hall.



Annual Report 2020–2021   81

Form No. MGT-11
Proxy Form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014]

CIN : U27300DL2017PTC324842

Name of the Company : STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PVT. LTD.

Registered office : D-66, GF, HAUZ KHAS, NEW DELHI 110 016

Name of the member(s): 

Registered Address:

E-mail ID:

Folio No/Client ID:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) of Steel Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd., holding _________ shares of the above named Company, 
hereby appoint

 1.  Name:………………………………………………....... Address:......……………………………………………………………………..............................
  E-mail ID: ………………………………………… Signature…………………………………………….........................…or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 4th Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on Saturday, May 15, 2021 at 04.30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual 
Means (OAVM) in respect of such resolutions as indicated below:-

S. No. Resolution For Against

1.
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 
31st March 2021, together with the Board’s Report and Auditors’ Report thereon 

2. 
To Confirm Remuneration of M/s PSAC & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm 
Registration Number 012411C) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company 

3.

(1) (i) Approval of Remuneration of Directors for financial year 2021-22
(ii) Scheme for variable pay for Managing Director & Whole-time Director(s) for 
financial year 21-22
(2) Payment of remuneration (variable part) of Managing Director & Whole-time 
Director(s) related to  financial year 2020-21 as per scheme of variable pay on 
achievement of targets

Signed this_______ day of______ 2021________

Signature of Shareholder    

Signature of Proxy Holder(s)

Notes:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company addressed to the “Company Secretary”, not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A person can act as proxy on behalf of Members upto and not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company. Further, a Member holding more than ten percent of the total 
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act 
as proxy for any other person or Member.

Affix
Rs 1/- 

Revenue 
Stamp here
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STEEL INFRA SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U27300DL2017PTC324842
Website: www.siscol.in

Registered / Corporate Office:
D-66, Ground Floor 
Hauz Khas
New Delhi 110 016 
India

Design Engineering Office:
6th Floor, ‘City Centre’ 79/2, Hennur
Bellary Outer Ring Road, Hebbal
Bangalore 560 024, India

Plant Locations:
A
Plot No. 31, Light Industrial Area 
Bhilai, Chhattisgarh 490 026, India

B
Plot No. 22-C, Heavy Industrial Area 
Bhilai, Chhattisgarh 490 026, India

Chennai Office:
Plot No. 38, Kalaimagal Nagar 
2nd Main Road, Ekkatuthnagal
Chennai 600 032

CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR 
Mr. Ravi Uppal

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. K. Rajagopal, Whole-time Director 
Mr. Niladri Sarkar, Whole-time Director
Mr. Ranjan Sharma, Director
Mr. Arun Choudhari, Director 
Mr. Zarksis J Parabia, Director 
Mr. Siddharth Shah, Director

COMPANY SECRETARY &  
COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Suraj Agarwal

STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s PSAC & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Savitri Chambers
72, Commercial Complex
Nehru Nagar (East), Bhilai
Chhattisgarh 490 020

COST AUDITORS
ARINDAM & ASSOCIATES
D 16, Bhavna Nagar, Shankar Nagar,  
Raipur, Chattisgarh 492 007

INTERNAL AUDITORS
SARC & ASSOCIATES
SARC Tower, D-191, Okhla Industrial Estate 
Phase-1, New Delhi 110 020

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT
M/s Alankit Assignments Limited
Alankit Heights
4E/2, Jandhewalan Extn.
New Delhi 110 055

BANKERS
HDFC Bank 
Richmond Road, Corporation Division
No. 61, Bangalore 560 025

Corporate Information
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